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NHS Newcastle Gateshead CCG Committee structure 

 

Audit Committee 
The Audit Committee was operational throughout the 2019/20 financial year and has continued 
to operate after that period. In accordance with the terms of reference, meetings of the Audit 
Committee are normally held bi-monthly, and not less than five times per financial year. The 
Audit Committee met on five occasions during 2019/20.  
 
In line with the requirements of the NHS Audit Committee Handbook and NHS Codes of 
Conduct and Accountability, the Committee provides the organisation with an independent and 
objective review of their financial systems, financial information and compliance with laws, 
guidance, and regulations governing the NHS.  The Audit Committee also encompasses the 
functions of the Finance and Performance Committee.  
 
The Committee’s cycle of business includes review of the Clinical Commissioning Group 
Assurance Framework and corporate risk register. The Committee is a non-executive 
Committee of the Governing Body and has no executive powers, other than those specifically 
delegated in its terms of reference.  
 
The Audit Committee’s terms of reference are described in a document separate to the CCG’s 
constitution and are available on the CCG’s website. 
 
The Audit Committee, as part of its terms of reference, provides an annual report of its work to 
the Governing Body. The most recent report available covers 2019/20. The principal purpose 
of the report is to give the Governing Body an assurance as to the work carried out to support 
the Accountable Officer’s review of the internal control arrangements.  
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The Committee’s cycle of business enables the Audit Committee to carry out its key objectives 
necessary to support its assurances regarding the effectiveness of the organisation’s internal 
controls.  
 

Remuneration Committee 

The Remuneration Committee met on two occasions during 2019/20. In accordance with the 
terms of reference, meetings of the Remuneration Committee will be held as and when 
required, but not less than once per financial year.  
 
The Remuneration Committee is established to advise/recommend to the Governing Body the 
appropriate remuneration and terms of service for the Chief Officer and other staff paid through 
the Very Senior Manager Pay Framework.  
 
The Committee also advises/recommends to the Governing Body remuneration for the role of 
chair and reviews any business cases for early retirement and redundancy. The Committee’s 
terms of reference are described in a document separate to the CCG’s constitution and are 
available on the CCG’s website. 
 

Quality, Safety and Risk Committee 

The Quality, Safety and Risk Committee was operational throughout 2019/20 and has 
continued to operate after that period. In accordance with the terms of reference, meetings of 
the Quality, Safety and Risk Committee will be held not less than six times per financial year. 
The Quality, Safety and Risk Committee met on six occasions during 2019/20. 
 
The Quality, Safety and Risk Committee assists the Governing Body in its duty to secure 
continuous improvement in the quality of services, improve the quality of primary medical 
services and promote research and use of research. It provides assurance to the governing 
body about the quality, safety and risks of the services being commissioned, and the overall 
risks to the organisation’s strategic and operational plans.  
 
The Committee’s terms of reference are described in a document separate to the CCG’s 
Constitution and are available on the CCG’s website. 
 
Significantly, during the year through its cycle of business, the Quality, Safety and Risk 
Committee and its associated sub-Committee has considered the following issues: 
 

• Quality monitoring reports on provider commissioned services, including the reporting of 
serious untoward incidents and never events 

• Healthcare acquired infections 
• Risk Management Strategy and Governance Framework 
• Information governance  
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Executive Committee 

The Executive Committee was operational throughout 2019/20 and has continued to operate 
after that period. In accordance with the terms of reference, meetings of the Executive 
Committee will normally be at least monthly, and not less than eight times per financial year. 
The Executive Committee met on 12 occasions during 2019/20. 
 
The Executive Committee is a management Committee which supports the CCG, its 
Governing Body and the Accountable Officer in the discharge of their functions. It assists the 
Governing Body in its duties to promote a comprehensive health service, reduce inequalities 
and promote innovation. Its remit includes development and implementation of strategy, 
monitoring and delivery of delegated duties, operational, financial, contractual and clinical 
performance as well as ensuring the coordination and monitoring of risks and internal controls.  
 
It has authority to make decisions as set out within its terms of reference and the CCG’s 
scheme of delegation. 
 

Primary Care Commissioning Committee 
The principal role of the Primary Care Commissioning Committee (PCCC) is to commission 
primary medical services for the people of Newcastle and Gateshead. 
The remit and responsibilities of the PCCC shall be to carry out the functions relating to the 
commissioning of primary medical services under section 83 of the NHS Act.  
 
The functions of the Committee are undertaken in the context of a desire to promote increased 
quality, efficiency, productivity and value for money and to remove administrative barriers. 
 
NHS England has delegated to the CCG authority to exercise primary care commissioning 
functions that include but are not limited to the following activities: 
 
• Decisions in relation to General Medical Services (GMS), Personal Medical Services (PMS) 

and Alternative Providers of Medical Services (APMS) contracts  
• To manage the budget for commissioning of primary medical care services 
• Decisions in relation to newly designed enhanced services (Local Enhanced Services and 

Directed Enhanced Services) 
• Decisions in relation to local incentive schemes, including the design and implementation of 

such schemes 
• To plan primary medical care services, including Primary Care needs assessments 
• To undertake reviews of primary medical care services 
• Decision making on whether to establish new GP practices in an area 
• Approving practice mergers and de-mergers 
• Decisions on practice closures 
• Planning new primary care estate 
• Making decisions on ‘discretionary’ payment (e.g. returner/retainer schemes) 
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• Responsibility for GP practice contract management and performance 
• Discussions in relation to the management of poorly performing GP practices (excluding 

any decision in relation to the performers list). 
 
In accordance with the terms of reference, meetings of the Primary Care Commissioning 
Committee will be held not less than four times per financial year.  
 
The Primary Care Commissioning Committee met on 10 occasions during 2019/20. 
The Committee’s terms of reference are described in a document separate to the CCG’s 
Constitution and are available on the CCG’s website. 

 

Northern CCG Joint Committee 
The Northern CCG Joint Committee was established with effect from October 2017 and is a 
Committee of the Governing Body. The Joint Committee will make decisions on subjects 
recommended and agreed as part of its annual work plan. 
 
Membership of the Joint Committee is made up of representatives from the twelve CCGs from 
across Cumbria and the North East, with the Clinical Chair and Chief Officer attending on 
behalf of Newcastle Gateshead CCG. 
 
Meetings are held in public with members of the public invited to attend to observe the Joint 
Committee at work. The Committee met six times in 2019/20. 
 

UK Corporate Governance Code 
As an NHS body we are not required to comply with the UK Corporate Governance Code. 
However, we have reported on our corporate governance arrangements by drawing on best 
practice available, including those aspects of the UK Corporate Governance Code we consider 
to be relevant to the clinical commissioning group and best practice. 
 
For the financial year ended 31 March 2020, and up to the date of signing this statement, we 
had regard to the provisions set out in the code, and applied the principles of the code. 

 

Discharge of statutory functions 

The arrangements put in place by the clinical commissioning group and explained within the 
Corporate Governance Framework were developed with on-going expert external legal input, 
to ensure compliance with the all relevant legislation. That legal advice also informed the 
matters reserved for Membership Body and Governing Body decision and the scheme of 
delegation. 
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In light of the 2013 Harris Review, the clinical commissioning group has reviewed all of the 
statutory duties and powers conferred on it by the National Health Service Act 2006 (as 
amended) and other associated legislative and regulations.  
 
As a result, I can confirm that the clinical commissioning group is clear about the legislative 
requirements associated with each of the statutory functions for which it is responsible, 
including any restrictions on delegation of those functions. 
 
Responsibility for each duty and power has been clearly allocated to a lead director. 
Directorate structures are periodically reviewed alongside the service agreement with the 
Commissioning Support Unit to ensure as far as possible the necessary capability and capacity 
to undertake all of the clinical commissioning group’s statutory duties. 
 

Risk management arrangements and effectiveness  

 
A Risk Management Policy is in place which takes into account current guidance on risk 
management best practice and incorporates guidance provided by ISO 31000:2009 and the 
former National Patient Safety Agency in its approach to assessing risk. 
 
The Risk Management Policy sets out the CCG’s approach to the assessment and 
management of clinical and non-clinical risk in fulfilment of our overall objective to commission 
high quality and safe services. It provides guidance for the systematic and effective 
management of risk. Key elements of the Risk Management Policy include: 
 

• A clear statement of Governing Body and individual accountability for delivery of the policy 
• Clear principles, aims and objectives of the risk management process 
• A clearly defined process for delivering the policy including an implementation plan to 

ensure that the policy and risk management awareness is communicated to all staff 
• Details of the approach to be undertaken to assess and report risk 
• An agreed process for reporting, managing, analysing and learning from adverse events  
• Confirmation of the arrangements for reporting risk through the risk register 

 
Initial risks are rated according to impact and likelihood. Controls and assurances are then 
identified to ensure risks are being managed and mitigated. Residual risk ratings are then 
agreed and recorded, with a review date. The risk management policy sets out the 
arrangements for the escalation of risk. 
 
The Governing Body assurance framework contains the strategic risks faced by the CCG and 
is reviewed by the Audit Committee and presented to the Governing Body for approval at 
regular intervals throughout the year. It remains under active review as it enables the 
Governing Body to be sighted on the risks to the delivery of the organisation’s principal 
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objectives and to ensure that effective controls and assurance are in place.  
 
Capacity to handle risk  

As Accountable Officer I have overall responsibility for: 
 

• Ensuring the implementation of an effective risk management strategy, including effective 
risk management systems and internal controls 

• The development of the corporate governance and assurance framework 
• Meeting all the statutory requirements and ensuring positive performance towards our 

strategic objectives 

 

Each of the directors of the CCG is responsible for: 

• Co-ordinating operational risk in their specific areas in accordance with the risk 
management strategy 

• Ensuring that all areas of risk are assessed appropriately and action taken to implement 
improvements 

• Ensuring that staff under their management are aware of their risk management 
responsibilities in relation to the risk management strategy 

• Incorporating risk management as a management technique within the performance 
management arrangements for the organisation 

 
All members of staff are aware of their responsibilities in relation to the risk management 
strategy and policy. This ensures that risk is seen as the responsibility of all members of staff 
and not just senior managers. 
 

Risk assessment  

The CCG’s approach to risk management ensures that all risks are captured and monitored in 
line with the CCG’s Risk Management Policy. Current and potential risks are captured in the 
CCG’s risk register and include actions and timescales identified to minimise such risks.   
 
The risk register is a log of risks that threaten the organisation’s success in achieving its aims 
and objectives and is populated through a risk assessment and evaluation process. The 
register is updated regularly by the risk owners with support from the CCG’s Head of Corporate 
Affairs and North of England Commissioning Support.  
 

Assurance and reporting 
Both operational and strategic risks are documented in the Risk Register. 

 
Risk registers are reviewed a minimum of quarterly: 
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• In 2019/20, risk reporting to management Committees was reviewed to ensure each 
Committee continues to receive relevant and sufficient information to be able to discharge 
its responsibilities with regards to the management of risk.   

• Quality, Safety and Risk Committee receives risks specifically relating to quality and safety 
and also the full CCG risk register. 

• Executive Committee receives a report on any risks scored High or above and also risks for 
which it has specific oversight. 

• Audit Committee receives the Assurance Framework, operational risks scored High or 
above, and any financial risks. It also is responsible for approving the closure of risks. 

• Governing Body receives the Assurance Framework and any Extreme operational risks. 
• Primary Care Commissioning Committee now receives primary care risks 

 
Each risk has an initial score, a residual score and a target score, with the residual score 
representing the current rating.  
 
Whenever risks to the achievement of CCGs’ objectives have been identified appropriate 
controls are put in place to eliminate the risk or mitigate its effect. To do this, a standard risk 
assessment matrix is used which is based on current national guidance, but has been adapted 
to suit the CCG’s agreed risk appetite. 
 
Using this standardised tool ensures that risk assessments are undertaken in a consistent 
manner using agreed definitions and evaluation criteria. This allows for comparisons to be 
made between different risk types and for decisions to be made on the resources needed to 
mitigate the risk. 
 
Risks are assessed in terms of the likelihood of occurrence/re-occurrence and the 
consequences of impact. After the residual risk rating has been applied (based on current 
controls) action plans are then developed based on any gaps identified to put further control 
measures in place.  
 

Risk matrix 

 
Likelihood 

1 

(rare) 

2 

(unlikely) 

3 

(possible) 

4 

(likely) 

5 

(almost 

certain) 

C
o

n
s
e
q

u
e
n

c
e
 

1 

(Catastrophic) 
5 10 15 20 25 

2 

(Major) 
4 8 12 16 20 

3 

(Moderate) 
3 6 9 12 15 

4 

(Minor) 
2 4 6 8 10 

5 

(Negligible) 
1 2 3 4 5 
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For grading risk, the scores obtained from the risk matrix are assigned grades as follows: 

Green 1-9 Low/moderate 

Amber 10-12 High 

Red 15-25 Extreme 

 
 
Extreme and high risks that have been on the assurance framework throughout the year are 
listed below: 
 

• The requirement to meet statutory financial duties and the control total set by NHS England 
as increasing pressures on the CCG finances continue, particularly from demographic 
pressures. In 2019/20 QIPP plans were in place to deliver the £14m required to achieve the 
CCG control total, as agreed with NHS England. Although the risk decreased as the year 
progressed this continued to be monitored with action plans under constant review 
throughout 2019/20. 

• Primary Care risks relating to capacity, workload, and resilience in primary care and the 
establishment of Primary Care Networks. There have been several risks relating need to 
provide sustainable primary care and to evolve and transform to meet the changing needs 
of the population as well as requirements of the Long Term Plan. In 2019/20 the first stages 
in the establishment of Primary Care Networks were completed and the CCG continues to 
review its transformation plans for primary care moving forwards.  

• Increasing activity and cost associated with Continuing Health Care (CHC) resulting in a 
high impact on the CCG’s financial position. This has been a risk throughout 2018/19 and 
continues into 2019/20. CHC spend is monitored carefully throughout the year and reported 
as part of the Integrated Delivery Report presented to Executive Committee, Audit 
Committee and Governing Body every two months.  

 
The CCG also maintains a number of operational risks which are present on the risk register 
but not on the Assurance Framework. These risks are also closely monitored at CCG 
Committee meetings including Executive Committee and Audit Committee.  
 
Significant additions to the operational risk register this year include performance risks related 
to key NHS performance measures such as targets for cancer, North East Ambulance Service 
and diagnostics and testing. Risks associated with Brexit were also monitored across the year 
including potential medicines shortages and increased cyber threats.  
 
Mitigating action plans have been put in place to address all risks and progress has been 
monitored closely by the Quality, Safety and Risk Committee, Audit Committee, Executive 
Committee and the Governing Body. 
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Towards the very end of 2019/20 the emerging COVID-19 pandemic was becoming apparent 
and became the major issue and risk facing the CCG. The response to the pandemic reshaped 
the way the CCG and wider NHS worked and will frame the work of the CCG for the 
foreseeable future.  
 

Other sources of assurance  

Internal control framework 

A system of internal control is the set of processes and procedures in place in the clinical 
commissioning group to ensure it delivers its policies, aims and objectives.  
 
It is designed to identify and prioritise the risks, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being 
realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and 
economically. The system of internal control allows risk to be managed to a reasonable level 
rather than eliminating all risk; it can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute 
assurance of effectiveness. 
 
The Clinical Commissioning Group internal control framework 

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to 
eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide 
reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness.  
 
The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify and 
prioritise the risks to the achievement of the policies, aims and objectives of the clinical 
commissioning group, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact 
should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.  
 
A system of internal control has been in place in the CCG for the whole of the year ending 31 
March 2020 and up to the date of the approval of the statement of accounts. 
 
The Internal Audit service is an important aspect of assurance on the system of internal control 
through a risk based programme of work. This provides assurance on key systems of control 
within the CCG through formal reporting to Audit Committee. The Head of Internal Audit also 
has direct access to the Audit Committee Chair as required.  
 
Statutory and mandatory training has been undertaken by all members of staff during 2019/20, 
including compliance with health and safety requirements and information governance 
requirements. The CCG is committed to a process of continuing professional development, 
directed through the formal appraisal system. 
 
The CCG has a range of policies in place which contribute to the system of internal control. 
The three policy areas are corporate, human resources and information governance with a 
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suite of standard operating procedures to support them. Policies are reviewed and revised on a 
regular basis determined by their revision date. 
 

Annual audit of conflicts of interest management  

The revised statutory guidance on managing conflicts of interest for CCGs (published June 
2017) requires CCGs to undertake an annual internal audit of conflicts of interest management. 
To support CCGs to undertake this task, NHS England has published a template audit 
framework.  
 
The CCG has carried out the annual internal audit of conflicts of interest. The outcome is an 
assurance rating of ‘substantial’ with no significant issues identified. 

Data quality 

We receive data on quality, performance, finance and contracts which brings together the key 
strands of provider management responsibility. This ensures that no single aspect of this 
element of business is seen in isolation and provides an explicit link between finance, quality 
and performance issues. 
 
Data is also received in relation to human resources, statutory and mandatory training and 
freedom of information requests which inform the governing body of progress and issues in 
those areas. 
 
The Governing Body considers the data received to be of an acceptable standard. 
 
 
Information governance 

The NHS Information Governance Framework sets the processes and procedures by which 
the NHS handles information about patients and employees, in particular personal identifiable 
information. The NHS Information Governance Framework is supported by an information 
governance toolkit and the annual submission process provides assurances to the clinical 
commissioning group, other organisations and to individuals that personal information is dealt 
with legally, securely, efficiently and effectively. 
 
We place high importance on ensuring there are robust information governance systems and 
processes in place to help protect patient and corporate information.  We have established an 
information governance management framework and have developed information governance 
processes and procedures in line with the Data Security & Protection Toolkit.  
 
We have ensured all staff undertake annual information governance training and have 
implemented a staff information governance handbook to ensure staff are aware of their 
information governance roles and responsibilities. 
 
There are processes in place for incident reporting and investigation of serious incidents. We 
have developed information risk assessment and management procedures and continue to 
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develop our systems to fully embed an information risk culture throughout the organisation 
against identified risks. 
 
The information governance agenda is reviewed at the Quality, Safety and Risk Committee. 
The Caldicott Guardian and the Senior Information Risk Owner (SIRO) also play an important 
role in maintaining a robust approach to information governance. 
 
The Data Security & Protection (DSP) Toolkit It is an online system which allows NHS 
Organisations and partners to assess themselves against Department of Health and Social 
Care Information Governance policies and standards. All NHS organisations are required to 
carry out self-assessments. 
 
Newcastle Gateshead CCG’s DSP Toolkit for 2019/20 has yet to be submitted as the deadline 
for all submissions has been extended to 30 September 2020 as a result of COVID-19 
disruption. The majority of assertions have been completed and uploaded to the toolkit website 
with the remaining to be added ahead of the September deadline.  
 
Certain assertions within the Toolkit were also subject to audit by Audit One. The audit report 
has been received and the feedback in terms of additional information required was very 
minimal and in most cases refers to assertions that were not yet complete at the time of audit.  
 
We comply with our statutory duty to respond to requests for information. During the year we 
received 239 requests under the Freedom of Information Act 2000.  All were responded to 
within the statutory timescales. 
 

Business critical models 

We have a Business Continuity Management Plan, which is a live document and was formally 
approved by the Governing Body in January 2020. We do not have any business critical 
models. 
 

 

Third party assurances 

The CCG relies on several external support services providers in respect of some of its 
business functions, including the North of England Commissioning Support (NECS), the NHS 
Shared Business Service (SBS), Electronic Staff Records (ESR) (IBM), Northumbria 
Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust (payroll), Capita (primary care co-commissioning), NHS 
Digital (GP payments) and the NHS Business Services Authority (BSA).   
 
These organisations provide service auditor reports (SARs) as part of the evidence of 
assurance on their internal system of controls as required by their customers. These service 
auditor reports are considered by the Audit Committee and internal audit also consider service 
auditor reports as part of the overall year-end internal audit opinion. 
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Control issues 

Significant control issues are those issues that might prejudice the achievement of priorities, 
undermine the integrity or reputation of the CCG and/or wider NHS, made it harder to resist 
fraud or other misuse of resources, have a material impact on the accounts or put national 
security of data integrity at risk.  
 
The CCG has in place a robust system of internal control and there are no significant internal 
control issues currently facing the CCG. The CCG has assurances from the Head of Internal 
Audit and from other sources to support this assessment. 
 

Review of economy, efficiency and effectiveness of the use of 

resources 

 
The CCG has well-developed internal systems and processes in place for managing resources 
with regard to economy, efficiency and the effective use of resources.  Internal systems and 
processes are underpinned by the governance structure that includes the Audit Committee, 
with terms of reference as noted above.   
 
All clinical commissioning groups in England are subject to an annual assessment which 
examines key objectives and priorities in relation to the CCG improvement and assessment 
framework, and the NHS Five Year Forward View. 
 
The assessors highlighted a great many positive achievements and examples of outstanding 
leadership for 2018-19 and NHS Newcastle Gateshead CCG received an overall rating of 
‘outstanding’, the highest possible rating available.  
 
NHS England publishes the CCG assessment outcomes on My NHS (www.nhs.uk/mynhs). 
The latest available results for 2018/19 show the CCG Quality of Leadership Indicator rated as 
‘green star’ – the highest rating available.  
 
Lead directors have agreed key roles in the implementation of the plans and the refinement of 
financial sustainability plans continued to be led by them.  
 
The Integrated Delivery Report (IDR) is presented at the Finance and Performance section of 
each meeting of the Audit Committee, and is also presented and discussed at the Executive 
Committee and the Governing Body.  From a more operational perspective, the Corporate 
Management Team meetings include a Financial Sustainability Group which focuses on the 
development and delivery of the CCG’s annual QIPP programme. 
 
Member practices continue to be crucial to delivering our local efficiency savings, through 
tackling variation and ensuring ‘Right Care’ principles are in place. Practices are supported by 



 

 Page 75  
 

named CCG staff who continued the programme of regular practice visits throughout the year 
to review performance against specific practice action plans addressing these key issues.  
 
We have continued our detailed review of costs incurred against contracts throughout the year. 
Contract management meetings were supported by detailed reporting showing actual activity 
and cost against planned levels across all points of delivery and this was supported by more 
detailed analysis where there was significant variance to plan.  Internal meetings such as the 
Finance Sustainability Group were used to link contract discussions with the practice liaison 
work. 
 
It is important that our financial reporting supports collective and comprehensive assurance on 
patient safety, quality and performance which is critical to ensuring economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in the use of CCG resources. Our ‘Integrated Delivery Report’ is the vehicle for 
corporate reporting throughout the organisation and crucially gives visibility and enables 
triangulation of patient safety, quality performance and financial matters arising from 
commissioned services. 
 

Delegation of functions 

The CCG currently contracts with a number of external organisations for the provision of back 
office services and functions and as such has established an internal control system to gain 
assurance from these. These external services include: 
 
• The provision of Oracle financial system and financial accounting support from NHS Shared 

Business Services. The use of NHS Shared Business Services is mandated by NHS 
England for all CCGs and is fundamental in producing NHS England group financial 
accounts through the use of an integrated financial ledger system 

• The provision of financial accounting services from the North of England Commissioning 
Support Unit (NECS) 

• The provision of payroll services from Northumbria Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust 
• The provision of the ESR payroll systems support from IBM 

 
Assurance on the effectiveness of the controls is received in part from annual service audit 
reports and internal audit assurance reports from the relevant service providers. The outcomes 
from these audits are reported to the Audit Committee.  
 

Counter fraud arrangements 

Our counter fraud activity plays a key part in deterring risks to the organisation’s financial 
viability and probity. An annual counter fraud plan is agreed by the Audit Committee, which 
focuses on the deterrence, prevention, detection and investigation of fraud. 
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Through our contract with Audit One, we have counter fraud arrangements in place that 
comply with the NHS Counter Fraud Authority Standards for Commissioners: Fraud, Bribery 
and Corruption. 
 

• An Accredited Counter Fraud Specialist is contracted to undertake counter fraud work 
proportionate to identified risks    

• The CCG Audit Committee receives a report against each of the Standards for 
Commissioners at least annually. There is executive support and direction for a 
proportionate proactive work plan to address identified risks   

• A member of the governing body is proactively and demonstrably responsible for tackling 
fraud, bribery and corruption 

• Appropriate action is taken regarding any NHS Counter Fraud Authority quality assurance 
recommendations 

 
There have been no incidents of fraud by way of prosecution or civil recovery during 2019/20, 
however there is one ongoing irregularity investigation including the possibility of fraud. 

 

Head of Internal Audit opinion 

 
Following completion of the planned audit work for the financial year for the clinical 
commissioning group, the Head of Internal Audit issued an independent and objective opinion 
on the adequacy and effectiveness of the clinical commissioning group’s system of risk 
management, governance and internal control. The Head of Internal Audit concluded that: 
 
“From my review of your systems of internal control, I am providing an opinion of substantial 
assurance that the system of internal control, governance and risk management has been 
effectively designed to meet the organisation’s objectives, and that controls are being 
consistently applied.” 
 
During the year, Internal Audit issued the following audit reports. 
 
Audit report assurances  

Area of Audit 
Level of 

Assurance Given 

NGA 2019-20/01: Governance Structures and Risk 
Management Arrangements Substantial 

NGA 2019-20/02: Conflicts of Interest Substantial 

NGA 2019-20/03: Data Security and Protection Toolkit Substantial 

NGA 2019-20/04: Primary Medical Care Commissioning Good 

NGA 2019-20/05: Contract and Performance Monitoring Substantial 
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Audit report assurances  

NGA 2019-20/06: Financial and Strategic Planning Substantial 

NGA 2019-20/07: Key Financial Controls and QIPP Reporting Substantial 

NGA 2019-20/08: Continuing Healthcare and Funded Nursing 
Care Substantial 

NGA 2019-20/10: Safeguarding Arrangements - Working 
Together to Safeguard Children Good 

NGA 2019-20/11: Mental Health Arrangements - DOLS and 
MCA Limited 

 

Review of the effectiveness of governance, risk management and internal 

control 
My review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control is informed by the work of the 
internal auditors, executive managers and clinical leads within the clinical commissioning group 
who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the internal control 
framework.  
 
I have drawn on performance information available to me. My review is also informed by 
comments made by the external auditors in their annual audit letter and other reports.  
 
Our assurance framework provides me with evidence that the effectiveness of controls that 
manage risks to the clinical commissioning group achieving its principles objectives have been 
reviewed.  
 
I have been advised on the implications of the result of my review of the effectiveness of the 
system of internal control by the Governing Body, the Audit Committee and the Quality, Safety 
and Risk Committee, and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement 
of the system is in place. 
 
The CCG has worked closely with NHS England throughout the year, including participating in 
the quarterly assurance programme of work.   
 
In particular, there are some key processes that the CCG uses throughout the year to be 
assured that the system of internal control is effective: 
 

i. Governing Body 

The Governing Body assurance framework has been regularly reviewed by the Governing 
Body. The Governing Body also receives minutes from the Executive Committee and the 
Quality, Safety and Risk Committee who have responsibility for the approval of new and 
updated policies throughout the year. 
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ii. Audit Committee 

The annual internal audit plan, as approved by the Audit Committee, enables the CCG to be 
reassured that key internal financial controls and other matters relating to risk are regularly 
reviewed. The Committee has reviewed the internal and external audit reports and has kept 
the assurance framework under review throughout the year. 
 
iii. Quality, Safety and Risk Committee 

This Committee provides assurance to the Governing Body that there are adequate controls in 
place to ensure the CCG is delivering on its statutory and non-statutory clinical duties and 
responsibilities. The Head of Corporate Affairs, as lead manager for risk and corporate 
governance, provides bi-monthly reports to the Quality, Safety and Risk Committee and the 
Audit Committee.  
 
iv. Assurances of outsourced services  

The CCG receives a number of service auditor reports (SAR) to gain assurances from third 
parties who deliver services on our behalf. 
 
In respect of the Capita SAR, due to Covid-19, NHSE has indicated the SAR will be delayed.  
This SAR was qualified in previous years and the CCG has ensured it has had adequate 
compensating controls in place.  I understand the scope of controls is the same as the prior 
year, therefore I am satisfied we have sufficient assurance in respect of the 2019/20 year, 
despite the delay, due to the aforementioned compensating controls.  
  
In respect of the NHS SBS SAR, due to Covid-19, the service auditor was unable to test 
controls for February and March 2020.  I have noted the qualification in the service auditor’s 
report, however I am satisfied we have sufficient assurance in respect of the 2019/20 year, due 
to the compensating controls in place at the CCG. 
 

v. North of England Commissioning Support Unit (NECS) 

The CCG relies on a range of support from NECS and it is important that the CCG receives 
adequate assurances from the commissioning support unit in respect of its controls 
environment.  
 
In a management report to the CCG, a review of NECS internal controls identified some minor 
areas of control weakness. This was considered by the Audit Committee and upon review 
concluded that they did not pose a material risk to the integrity of reporting. 
 
 

Data security  
We have adopted and implemented the Department of Health and Social Care’s guidance, 
‘Checklist for Reporting, Managing and Investigating Information Governance Serious 
Untoward Incidents’. 
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The organisation has a standard operating procedure in place for the reporting of level three 
information governance incidents to the Information Commissioner. This procedure outlines the 
scope of responsibilities and details the reporting procedures to be used in the event of a data 
security breach.  
 

Conclusion 
My review confirms therefore that there is a sound system of internal control in place across 
NHS Newcastle Gateshead CCG and that there are no significant control issues currently 
facing the CCG. 
 
In accordance with the statutory duties for clinical commissioning groups, as laid down in the 
Health and Social Care Act 2012, I certify that the continued delivery of those statutory duties 
was discharged through NHS Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group during 
2019/20. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Mark Adams 

Accountable Officer 
01 June 2020 
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Remuneration and Staff Report  

Remuneration Report   

Remuneration Committee 

The remuneration Committee is established to advise the Governing Body about pay, other 
benefits and terms of employment for the Chief Officer, Very Senior Managers (VSM) and 
Clinical Leads. The Committee is comprised entirely of Lay Members. Details of remuneration 
Committee membership, meeting frequency, items of business and meeting attendance are 
given in the Governance Statement of this report. 
 
 
Policy on the remuneration of senior managers  
The remuneration Committee has delegated authority from the Governing Body to make 
recommendations on determinations about pay and remuneration for employees of the CCG 
that are not covered by national pay and terms and conditions frameworks and for people who 
provide services to the CCG. The remuneration for senior managers for current and future 
financial years is determined in accordance with relevant guidance, best practice and national 
policy.  
 
Continuation of employment for all senior managers is subject to satisfactory performance. 
Performance in post and progress in achieving set objectives is reviewed annually. There were 
no individual performance review payments made to any senior managers during the year and 
there are no plans to make such payments in future years out with the ‘Very Senior 
Management Pay Framework’. This is in accordance with standard NHS terms and conditions 
of service and guidance issued by the Department of Health and Social Care.  
 
Contracts of employment in relation to all senior managers employed by the CCG are 
permanent in nature and subject to six months’ notice of termination by either party. 
 
Termination payments are limited to those laid down in statute and those provided for within 
NHS terms and conditions of service and under the NHS Pension Scheme Regulations for 
those who are members of the scheme. No awards have been made during the year to past 
senior managers (subject to audit). 
 
We are committed to attracting, retaining and developing a diverse and skilled workforce that is 
representative of our local population. We actively work to remove any discriminatory practices 
in our work, eliminate all forms of harassment and promote equality of opportunity in our 
recruitment, training, performance management and development practices. We have policies 
and processes in place to support this. 
 
 
Salaries and allowances 
 

The remuneration figures are given in the tables below. The figures in the tables relate to all 
those individuals who hold or who have held office as a senior manager in the CCG during 
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2019/20. The definition of a senior manager in the CCG is in accordance with the guidance 
provided in the Group Accounting Manual 2019/20. 
 
It is ‘those persons in senior positions having authority or responsibility for directing or 
controlling major activities within the group body. This means those who influence the 
decisions of the entity as a whole rather than the decisions of individual directorates or 
departments.’   
 
This definition covers all members of the CCG Governing Body, the CCG senior managers in 
regular attendance at the Governing Body and all members of the CCG Executive Committee.  
 
Mark Adams is employed as Accountable Officer for NHS Newcastle Gateshead CCG, NHS 
North Tyneside CCG and NHS Northumberland CCG. 
 
No other post-holder is shared under joint management arrangements with any other CCG. 
 
The Directors of Public Health are invited to be in attendance at the Governing Body in a non-
voting capacity. They are not employed by the CCG and receive no remuneration from the 
CCG for their CCG Governing Body role. 
 
Lynn Wilson (Director of Commissioning, Quality & Performance) is invited to be in attendance 
at Governing Body, in a non-voting capacity. This post is a joint appointment between NHS 
Newcastle Gateshead CCG and Gateshead Council and the post is hosted by Gateshead 
Council. 
 
 
Remuneration of Very Senior Managers 
Where one or more senior managers of a CCG are paid more than £150,000 per annum on a 
pro-rata basis, equivalent to the Prime Minister’s salary, information is disclosed in the 
remuneration report.  
 
During 2019/20 Newcastle Gateshead CCG had two senior managers (2018/19, none) who 
were paid more than £150,000 per annum on a pro-rata basis 
 
The remuneration for senior managers for current and future financial years is determined in 
accordance with relevant guidance, best practice and national policy.  
 
The Remuneration Committee critically reviews the salary of very senior managers when 
making recommendations to Governing Body regarding their remuneration  
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Senior manager remuneration 2019/20 (including salary and pension entitlements) (this has been subject to audit) 

Name  
Title Salary 

Expense 
payments 

(taxable) to 
nearest £100 

Performance 
pay and 
bonuses 

Long-term 
performance 

pay and 
bonuses 

All pension 
related 

benefits 
TOTAL 

    (bands of 
£5,000) 

 (bands of 
£5,000) 

(bands of 
£5,000) 

(bands of 
£2,500) 

(bands of 
£5,000) 

    £ 000 £00 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 
Dr Mark Dornan  Clinical Chair 90-95 5 - - 22.5-25 110-115 

Dr David Jones Assistant Clinical Chair  60-65 1 - - 20-22.5 80-85 

Mark Adams Chief Officer 70-75 19 - - 40-42.5 110-115 

Michael Burke Lay member, governance/audit 10-15 1 - - - 10-15 

Mandy Coppin  Lay member 5-10 - - - - 5-10 

Paul Gertig Lay member 5-10 - - - - 5-10 

Jeff Hurst Deputy lay chair / lay member 10-15 - - - - 10-15 

Margaret Stewart Lay member 5-10 1 - - - 5-10 

Oliver Wood Lay member 5-10 - - - - 5-10 
Sheinaz 
Stansfield Practice representative 0-5 - - - - 0-5 

Tracey Stuchlik Practice representative 0-5 - - - - 0-5 

Elizabeth Moylett Practice representative 0-5 - - - - 0-5 

Dr Peter Ward Practice representative 0-5 - - - - 0-5 

Jackie Cairns  Director for the Newcastle 
System 95-100 3 - - 12.5-15 110-115 
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Senior manager remuneration 2019/20 (including salary and pension entitlements) (this has been subject to audit) 

Name  
Title Salary 

Expense 
payments 

(taxable) to 
nearest £100 

Performance 
pay and 
bonuses 

Long-term 
performance 

pay and 
bonuses 

All pension 
related 

benefits 
TOTAL 

    (bands of 
£5,000) 

 (bands of 
£5,000) 

(bands of 
£5,000) 

(bands of 
£2,500) 

(bands of 
£5,000) 

    £ 000 £00 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 

Joe Corrigan Chief Finance Officer & 
Operating Officer 130-135 67 - - - 135-140 

Bill Cunliffe Secondary Care Specialist 
Doctor 25-30 - - - - 25-30 

Neil Hawkins Head of Corporate Affairs 60-65 2 - - 15-17.5 75-80 

Jane Mulholland Director of Operations, Delivery 
and Commissioning 25-30 - - - 5-7.5 30-35 

Chris Piercy Executive Director of Nursing, 
Patient Safety and Quality  105-110 15 - - - 105-110 

Dr Dominic 
Slowie Medical Director 110-115 5 - - - 115-120 

Dr Steve 
Summers Clinical Director 55-60 - - - 5-7.5 60-65 

Julia Young Director of Complex Care and 
Commissioning  100-105 1 - - 22.5-25 120-125 

 
Expense payments (taxable) are shown in £00 and relate to lease car allowances and mileage claims.  
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All pensions related benefits information is provided by NHS Pensions. The value of pension benefits accrued during the year is calculated as the real 
increase in pension multiplied by 20, less, the contributions made by the individual. The real increase excludes increases due to inflation or any increase or 
decrease due to a transfer of pension rights. This value does not represent an amount that will be received by the individual. It is a calculation that is 
intended to convey to the reader of the accounts an estimation of the benefit that being a member of the scheme could provide. 
The pension benefit table provides further information on the pension benefits accruing to the individual.  
 
Dr David Jones commenced Assistant Clinical Chair role on 1 April 2019.  
 
Mark Adams is employed as Accountable Officer by Newcastle Gateshead CCG and works for North Tyneside CCG and Northumberland CCG as part of a 
staff sharing arrangement. The salary disclosed above relates to Newcastle Gateshead CCG’s share of remuneration of 48%. Pension benefits are reported 
in full by Newcastle Gateshead CCG. No other post-holder is shared under joint management arrangements with any other CCG. 
 
Tracey Stuchlik left the Practice representative role on 30 June 2019.   
 
Elizabeth Moylett commenced the Practice representative role on 1 October 2019) 
 
Lynn Wilson (Director of Commissioning, Quality & Performance) is invited to be in attendance at Governing Body, in a non-voting capacity. This post is a 
joint appointment between NHS Newcastle Gateshead CCG and Gateshead Council and the post is hosted by Gateshead Council. Commenced Director for 
the Gateshead System role July 2019 (appointment to Governing Body approved through changes to Constitution approved by Commissioning Forum on 11 
July 2019). 
 
Jane Mulholland left the Director of Operations, Delivery and Commissioning role on 30 June 2019.  
 
The Directors of Public Health are invited to be in attendance at the Governing Body in a non-voting capacity. They are not employed by the CCG and 
receive no remuneration from the CCG for their CCG Governing Body role. 
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Staff sharing arrangements for senior manager remuneration 2019/20  
 
Mark Adams is employed by Newcastle Gateshead CCG and works for North Tyneside CCG and NHS Northumberland CCG as 
part of a staff sharing arrangement.  
 
No other post-holder is shared under joint management arrangements with any other CCG. 
 
The total remuneration earned for all work across the three CCGs in 2019/20 is shown below: 
 
 

Name  
Title Salary 

Expense 
payments 

(taxable) to 
nearest £100 

TOTAL 

    (bands of 
£5,000) 

 (bands of 
£5,000) 

    £ 000 £00 £ 000 
Mark Adams Chief Officer 150-155 19 150-155 
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Senior manager remuneration 2018/19 (including salary and pension entitlements) (this has been subject to audit) 

Name  
Title Salary 

Expense 
payments 

(taxable) to 
nearest £100 

Performance 
pay and 
bonuses 

Long-term 
performance 

pay and 
bonuses 

All pension 
related 

benefits 
TOTAL 

    (bands of 
£5,000) 

 (bands of 
£5,000) 

(bands of 
£5,000) 

(bands of 
£2,500) 

(bands of 
£5,000) 

    £ 000 £00 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 
Dr Mark Dornan  Clinical Chair 85-90 - - - 27.5-30 115-120 

Dr Guy Pilkington  Assistant Clinical Chair  55-60 - - - - 55-60 

Mark Adams Chief Officer 85-90 - - - - 85-90 

Michael Burke Lay member, governance/audit 10-15 - - - - 10-15 

Mandy Coppin  Lay member 5-10 - - - - 5-10 

Paul Gertig Lay member 5-10 - - - - 5-10 

Jeff Hurst Deputy lay chair / lay member 10-15 - - - - 10-15 

Margaret Stewart Lay member 5-10 - - - - 5-10 

Oliver Wood Lay member 5-10 - - - - 5-10 
Sheinaz 
Stansfield Practice representative 0-5 - - - - 0-5 

Tracey Stuchlik Practice representative 0-5 - - - - 0-5 

Dr Peter Ward Practice representative 0-5 - - - - 0-5 

Jackie Cairns  Director of System Enablement 95-100 - - - - 95-100 

Joe Corrigan Chief Finance Officer & 
Operating Officer 125-130 45 - - - 130-135 
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Senior manager remuneration 2018/19 (including salary and pension entitlements) (this has been subject to audit) 

Name  
Title Salary 

Expense 
payments 

(taxable) to 
nearest £100 

Performance 
pay and 
bonuses 

Long-term 
performance 

pay and 
bonuses 

All pension 
related 

benefits 
TOTAL 

    (bands of 
£5,000) 

 (bands of 
£5,000) 

(bands of 
£5,000) 

(bands of 
£2,500) 

(bands of 
£5,000) 

    £ 000 £00 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 

Bill Cunliffe Secondary Care Specialist 
Doctor 20-25 - - - - 20-25 

Neil Hawkins Head of Corporate Affairs 55-60 - - - 12.5-15 70-75 

Dr Neil Morris Medical Director 95-100 - - - - 95-100 

Jane Mulholland Director of Operations, Delivery 
and Commissioning 95-100 - - - - 95-100 

Chris Piercy Executive Director of Nursing, 
Patient Safety and Quality  100-105 - - - - 100-105 

Dr Dominic 
Slowie Interim Medical Director 40-45 - - - 217.5-220 260-265 

Dr Steve 
Summers Clinical Director 50-55 - - - 0-2.5 55-60 

Julia Young Director of Complex Care and 
Commissioning  95-100 - - - 7.5-10 105-110 

 
Expense payments (taxable) are shown in £00 and relate to lease cars. 

  



 

 Page 88  
 

 
All pensions related benefits information is provided by NHS Pensions. The value of pension benefits accrued during the year is calculated as the real 
increase in pension multiplied by 20, less, the contributions made by the individual. The real increase excludes increases due to inflation or any increase or 
decrease due to a transfer of pension rights. This value does not represent an amount that will be received by the individual. It is a calculation that is 
intended to convey to the reader of the accounts an estimation of the benefit that being a member of the scheme could provide. 
The pension benefit table provides further information on the pension benefits accruing to the individual.  
 
Mark Adams is employed as Accountable Officer by Newcastle Gateshead CCG and works for North Tyneside CCG as part of a staff sharing arrangement. 
The salary disclosed above relates to Newcastle Gateshead CCG’s share of remuneration of 60%. Pension benefits are reported in full by Newcastle 
Gateshead CCG. Mark Adams was appointed Accountable Officer for NHS Northumberland CCG by NHS England with effect from 1 March 2019 and  this 
arrangement has recently been formalised following the conclusion of the appointment process. No recharge was made to NHS Northumberland CCG for 
the month of March 2019 whilst these arrangements were being formalised. No other post-holder is shared under joint management arrangements with any 
other CCG 
 
Dr Neil Morris left the Medical Director role on 31 January 2019. 
 
Dr Dominic Slowie commenced the Interim Medical Director role on 1st December 2018 and was previously in a Clinical Director role from 3rd September 
2018. Remuneration for both roles reported above.  
 
Tracey Stuchlik commenced practice representative role on 1 September 2018. 
 
The Directors of Public Health are invited to be in attendance at the Governing Body in a non-voting capacity. They are not employed by the CCG and 
receive no remuneration from the CCG for their CCG Governing Body role. 

Lynn Wilson (Director of Commissioning, Quality & Performance) is invited to be in attendance at Governing Body, in a non-voting capacity. This post is a 
joint appointment between NHS Newcastle Gateshead CCG and Gateshead Council and the post is hosted by Gateshead Council.  
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Staff sharing arrangements for senior manager remuneration 2018/19  
 
Mark Adams is employed by Newcastle Gateshead CCG and works for North Tyneside CCG as part of a staff sharing arrangement.  
 
No other post-holder is shared under joint management arrangements with any other CCG. 
 
The total remuneration earned for all work across the two CCGs in 2018/19 is shown below: 
 
 

Name  
Title Salary 

Expense 
payments 

(taxable) to 
nearest £100 

TOTAL 

    (bands of 
£5,000) 

 (bands of 
£5,000) 

    £ 000 £00 £ 000 
Mark Adams Chief Officer 145-150 - 145-150 
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Newcastle Gateshead CCG senior officers pension benefits as at 31 March 2020 (this has been subjected to audit) 

 

Name Title 

Real increase 
in pension at 
pension age 

Real 
increase in 

pension 
lump sum at 
pension age 

Total 
accrued 

pension at 
pension age 
at 31 March 

2020 

Lump sum at 
pension age 
related to 
accrued 
pension at 31 
March 2019 

Cash 
Equivalent 
Transfer 

Value at 1 
April 2019 

Real 
Increase in 

Cash 
Equivalent 
Transfer 

Value  

Cash 
Equivalent 
Transfer 

Value at 31 
March 
2020 

Employer's 
contribution 

to 
stakeholder 

pension 
(bands of 
£2,500) 

(bands of 
£2,500) 

(bands of 
£5,000) 

(bands of 
£5,000)         

    £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Dr Mark Dornan Clinical Chair 0-2.5 0-2.5 15-20 30-35 217 13 243 - 

Dr David Jones   Assistant Clinical Chair  0-2.5 0-2.5 15-20 25-30 254 16 282 - 
Mark Adams Chief Officer 2.5-5 7.5-10 40-45 120-125 871 62 955 - 

Peter Ward Practice representative - - 5-10 20-25 150 1 151 - 
Jackie Cairns Director for the Newcastle System  0-2.5 2.5-5 35-40 105-110 785 32 830 - 

Joe Corrigan Chief Finance Officer & Operating 
Officer - - - - - - - - 

Neil Hawkins Head of Corporate Affairs 0-2.5 - 0-5 - 17 4 28 - 

Jane Mulholland Director of Operations, Delivery and 
Commissioning 0-2.5 0-2.5 30-35 95-100 - - - - 

Chris Piercy Executive Director of Nursing, Patient 
Safety and Quality  - - - - - - - - 

Dr Dominic Slowie Medical Director - - 40-45 80-85 881 - 765 - 

Steve Summers Clinical Director 0-2.5 0-2.5 10-15 30-35 227 - 149 - 

Julia Young Director of Complex Care and 
Commissioning 0-2.5 - 30-35 70-75 598 26 637 - 

 
Notes to senior officers pension benefits table 2019/20: 
 
Pension related benefits information is provided by NHS Pensions. 
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Cash equivalent transfer values at 1 April 2019 have been inflated by 2.4% in accordance with NHS Business Services Authority instructions. 
 
The pension figures shown relate to the benefits that individuals have accrued as a consequence of their total membership of the scheme. 
 
Benefits and related cash equivalent transfer values do not allow for any potential future adjustment arising from the McCloud judgment.  
 
Jane Mulholland left the CCG in June 2019. The real increase in pension is for a proportion of the time in post. 
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Newcastle Gateshead CCG senior officers pension benefits as at 31 March 2019 (this has been subjected to 
audit) 

 

Name Title 

Real increase 
in pension at 
pension age 

Real increase 
in pension 

lump sum at 
pension age 

Total 
accrued 

pension at 
pension age 
at 31 March 

2019 

Lump sum at 
pension age 

related to 
accrued 

pension at 31 
March 2019 

Cash 
Equivalent 
Transfer 

Value at 1 
April 2018 

Real 
Increase in 

Cash 
Equivalent 
Transfer 

Value  

Cash 
Equivalent 
Transfer 

Value at 31 
March 
2019 

Restated 
Employer's 
contribution 

to 
stakeholder 

pension 

(bands of 
£2,500) 

(bands of 
£2,500) 

(bands of 
£5,000) 

(bands of 
£5,000)         

    £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Dr Mark Dornan Clinical Chair 0-2.5 2.5-5 10-15 25-30 159 50 212 - 

Dr Guy Pilkington  Assistant Clinical Chair  - - 20-25 65-70 513 - - - 
Mark Adams Chief Officer 0-2.5 0-2.5 35-40 110-115 758 71 850 - 
Peter Ward Practice representative - - 5-10 20-25 131 15 146 - 

Jackie Cairns Director of System Enablement 0-2.5 0-2.5 30-35 100-105 692 61 766 - 

Joe Corrigan Chief Finance Officer & Operating 
Officer - - - - - - - - 

Neil Hawkins Head of Corporate Affairs 0-2.5 - 0-5 - 5 4 16 - 
Dr Neil Morris Medical Director - - 0-5 0-5 339 - - - 

Jane Mulholland Director of Operations, Delivery and 
Commissioning 0-2.5 0-2.5 30-35 90-95 - - - - 

Chris Piercy Executive Director of Nursing, 
Patient Safety and Quality  - - - - - - - - 

Dr Dominic Slowie Interim Medical Director 5-7.5 12.5-15 45-50 100-105 593 145 860 - 
Steve Summers Clinical Director 0-2.5 0-2.5 5-10 25-30 193 20 221 - 

Julia Young Director of Complex Care and 
Commissioning 0-2.5 - 30-35 70-75 511 59 584 - 
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Notes to senior officers pension benefits table 2018/19: 
 
Pension related benefits information is provided by NHS Pensions. 
 
Cash equivalent transfer values at 1 April 2018 have been inflated by 3% in accordance with NHS Business Services Authority instructions. 
 
The pension figures shown relate to the benefits that individuals have accrued as a consequence of their total membership of the scheme.   
 
Dr Dominic Slowie joined the CCG in September 2018. Real increase in pension are a proportion for the time in post. 
 
Employer’s contribution to stakeholder pension has been restated in 2019/20.  
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Cash equivalent transfer values  
A cash equivalent transfer value (CETV) is the actuarially assessed capital value of the 
pension scheme benefits accrued by a member at a particular point in time. The benefits 
valued are the member’s accrued benefits and any contingent spouses (or other allowable 
beneficiary’s) pension payable from the scheme. 
 
A CETV is a payment made by a pension scheme or arrangement to secure pension benefits 
in another pension scheme or arrangement when the member leaves a scheme and chooses 
to transfer the benefits accrued in their former scheme. The pension figures shown relate to 
the benefits that the individual has accrued as a consequence of their total membership of the 
pension scheme, not just their service in a senior capacity to which disclosure applies. 
 
The CETV figures and the other pension details include the value of any pension benefits in 
another scheme or arrangement which the individual has transferred to the NHS pension 
scheme. They also include any additional pension benefit accrued to the member as a result of 
their purchasing additional years of pension service in the scheme at their own cost. CETVs 
are calculated within the guidelines and framework prescribed by the Institute and Faculty of 
Actuaries.  
 
 
Real increase in CETV 
This reflects the increase in CETV that is funded by the employer. It does not include the 
increase in accrued pension due to inflation, contributions paid by the employee (including the 
value of any benefits transferred from another scheme or arrangement) and uses common 
market valuation factors for the start and end of the period. 
 
The method used to calculate CETVs changed, to remove the adjustment for Guaranteed 
Minimum Pension (GMP) on 8 August 2019. If the individual concerned was entitled to a GMP, 
this will affect the calculation of the real increase in CETV. This is more likely to affect the 1995 
Section and the 2008 Section. 
 
 
Compensation on early retirement or for loss of office 
There was no compensation on early retirement or for loss of office during 2019/20. 
 
 
Payments to past members (this has been subjected to audit) 
There were no payments to past directors during 2019/20. 
 
Fair Pay Disclosure (this has been subjected to audit) 
Reporting bodies are required to disclose the relationship between the remuneration of the 
highest paid member in their organisation and the median remuneration of the organisation’s 
workforce. 
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The banded remuneration of the highest paid director in Newcastle Gateshead CCG in the 
financial year 2019/20 was £135 – 140k (2018/19, £130 – 135k). This was 2.7 times (2018/19, 
2.4) the median remuneration of the workforce, which was £50,819 (2018/19, £56,106). In 
2019/20, no employee (2018/19, no employee) received remuneration in excess of the highest 
paid director. Remuneration for employees other than the highest paid director ranged from 
£5,398 to £119,999 (2018/19 restated, £4,000 to £104,085). 

Total remuneration includes salary, non-consolidated performance-related pay and benefits-in-
kind. It does not include severance payments, employer pension contributions and the cash 
equivalent transfer value of pensions.  

The pay multiples ratio has remained at a consistent level in 2019/20. The decrease in median 
remuneration relates to marginal changes to the overall remuneration and number of the 
workforce in-year. 

 

Staff report  
Number of senior managers 
The CCG had 22 senior managers in post as at 31 March 2020. The definition of a senior 
manager in the CCG is in accordance with the guidance provided in the Group Accounting 
Manual 2019/20. It is ‘those persons in senior positions having authority or responsibility for 
directing or controlling major activities within the group body.  
 
This means those who influence the decisions of the entity as a whole rather than the 
decisions of individual directorates or departments.’  This definition covers all members of the 
CCG Governing Body, the CCG senior managers in regular attendance at the Governing Body 
and all members of the CCG Executive Committee. There are no additional managers with 
significant financial responsibility. 
 
 
Staff numbers and costs (this has been subjected to audit) 
Staff numbers and costs are analysed by permanent employees and ‘other.’ Permanently 
employed refers to members of staff with a permanent (UK) employment contract directly with 
the CCG. ‘Other’ refers to any member of staff engaged that does not have a permanent (UK) 

Pay multiples (this has been subjected to audit)   

 2019/20 2018/19 
Band of Highest Paid Director's Total Remuneration (£'000)  135-140 130-135 
Median Total Remuneration (£)  £50,819 £56,106 
Ratio    2.7 2.4 
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employment contract with the CCG. This includes employees on short term contracts of 
employment and agency/temporary staff. 
 

 
Permanent 
Employees Other Total 

Average number of people employed   101 8 109 
     Average number based upon full time equivalent 

 

 
Permanent 
Employees Other Total 

Staff costs £'000 £'000 £'000 
Salaries and wages 5,031 473 5,504 
Social security costs 515 2 517 
Employer Contributions to NHS Pension scheme 860 1 861 
Other pension costs 6 0 6 
Apprenticeship levy 12 0 12 
Termination benefits 12 0 12 
Staff costs 6,437 475 6,912 

 

The figures exclude lay members of the Governing Body. 

 
Staff composition 
The CCG staff gender profile as at 31 March 2020 is given in the table below. This reflects our 
gender representation on the Governing Body, very senior manager (VSM) staff and all other 
CCG staff.   
 
 

Category of staff 

 
Total 

number of 
staff / 

members  

 
Number 
of male 
staff / 

members 
 

 
% male  

Number of 
female staff / 

members 
 

 
% female  

Senior officers* 6 4 67% 2 33% 
 
Other employees (who 
are not senior officers) 
 

160 39 24% 121 76% 

 
Total employees 
 

166 43 26% 123 74% 

Governing body 
members** 18 12 67% 6 33% 
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* The CCG’s six Very Senior Managers (VSM) are employees and are all members of the Governing Body 
therefore all are included in all the figures shown above. 
 
**This figure includes substantive voting members only, as detailed in the accountability report section of this 
annual report.  The Governing Body figures are provided as standalone figures, they do not contribute to the total 
figure for the whole CCG as some members may also be senior managers.  
 
 
The CCG can demonstrate fair and equitable recruitment, workforce engagement and 
employment terms and conditions to ensure levels of pay and related terms and conditions are 
fairly determined for all posts, with staff doing equal work, and work rated as of equal value, 
being entitled to equal pay. 
 
Sickness absence data 
The CCG has an agreed policy on the management of staff absence which ensures all staff 
are treated fairly and equitably, with the relevant support from line managers and HR advisors. 
The CCG also has access to occupational health services. The sickness absence data for 
2019 is given in the table below.  
 
Average of 12 

months 
(2019 calendar 

year) 
 

Average FTE 
2019 

 

FTE Days 
Available 

 

FTE Days 
Lost to 

sickness 
absence 

Average 
Sick Days 
per FTE 

 

Estimated Cost 
of Sickness 

Absence 
 

4.58% 106.83 24,038 1,100 10.3 £249k 
FTE – Full time equivalent 

Staff policies 
The CCG has a suite of staff policies in place. The CCG has taken positive steps throughout 
the year to maintain and develop the provision of information to, and consultation with 
employees, including: 
 

• Providing employees systematically with information on matters of concern to them as 
employees 

• Consulting employees and their representatives on a regular basis so that the views of 
employees can be taken into account in making decisions which are likely to affect their 
interests 

• Encouraging the involvement of employees in the CCG’s performance  

• Taking actions throughout the year to achieve a common awareness on the part of all 
employees of the financial and economic factors affecting the performance of the CCG 

• Membership of the North East Partnership Forum, where staff representatives and CCG 
managers from across the region meet together 

• Health & Safety policies are kept under review and updated on a regular basis to ensure 
they remain current and comply with national guidance and legislation.  
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Encouraging diversity  
We encourage a diverse range of people to apply to and work for us as we recognise the 
benefits such diversity brings to the quality of our work and the nature of our organisation.  
 
We continue to offer guaranteed interviews to applicants with a disability who are identified as 
meeting the essential criteria for any advertised roles; and reasonable adjustments under the 
Equality Act 2010 are considered and implemented during the recruitment process and during 
employment.  
 
This year, working closely with DWP, we have maintained our ‘Level 2 Disability Employer’ 
status for 2019/2020 by demonstrating our commitment to employing the right people for our 
business and continually developing our people. 
 
 

 

Trade union facility time 
 
The Trade Union (Facility Time Publication Requirements) regulations 2017 require relevant 
public sector organisations to report on trade union facility time in their organisations.  Facility 
time is paid time off for union representatives to carry out trade union activities.   
 
Relevant union officials 
 
Number of employees who were relevant 
union officials during the relevant period 

Full-time equivalent employee number 

1 1 
 
Percentage of time spent on facility time 
 

Percentage of time Number of employees 
0% 0 

1-50% 1 

51-99% 0 

100% 0 
 
Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time 
 
Provide the Total cost of facility time £2,567 

Provide the Total pay bill  £5,504,000 
Provide the percentage of the total pay 
bill spent on facility time, calculated as: 
(total cost of facility time ÷ total pay bill) x 
100 

0.05% 
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Paid trade union activities 
 
Time spent on paid trade union activities 
as a percentage of total paid facility time 
hours calculated as: 
(total hours spent on paid trade union 
activities by relevant union officials 
during the relevant period ÷ total paid 
facility time hours) x 100 

Union representatives are allowed 
reasonable time away from their core job role 
to support union activities, therefore do not 

receive a fixed allocation for paid facility 
time.  

 
  
Expenditure on consultancy 
 
No consultancy expenditure was incurred in 2019/20 (2018/19, nil). 
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Off-payroll engagements  

 
Off-payroll engagements as at 31 March 2020, for more than £245 per day and that last longer 
than six months 
  Number 

Number of existing engagements as of 31 March 2020 1 

Of which, the number that have existed: 

For less than one year at the time of reporting 0 

For between one and two years at the time of reporting 1 

For between two and three years at the time of reporting 0 

For between three and four years at the time of reporting 0 

For four or more years at the time of reporting 0 
 

New off-payroll engagements longer than six months  
New off-payroll engagements, or those that reached six months in duration, between 1 April 
2019 and 31 March 2020, greater than £245 per day and that last longer than six months 

  Number 

Number of new engagements, or those that reached six months in 
duration, between 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020   0 

Of which:  

number assessed that fall under the remit of IR35 0 

number assessed that do not fall under the remit of IR35 0 

 

Number engaged directly (via personal service company contracted 
to department) and are on the department payroll 0 

Number of engagements reassessed for consistency/assurance 
purposes during the year. 0 

Number of engagements that saw a change to IR35 status following 
the consistency review 0 
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Off-payroll engagements / senior official engagements 
Off-payroll engagements of Board members and senior officials with significant financial 
responsibility, between 1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020.  
 

Number of off-payroll engagements of board members, and/or senior officers with 
significant financial responsibility, during the financial year 0 

Total no. of individuals that have been deemed “board members, and/or, senior 
officials with significant financial responsibility”, during the financial year. This figure 
should include both on payroll and off- payroll engagements. 

23 

 

Exit packages, including special (non-contractual) payments (this has been subjected to 
audit) 
 
The CCG has made 6 compulsory redundancies during 2019/20 for which the posts were 
deemed to be redundant. (2018-19, The CCG made one payment of contractual notice due to 
an employee on an exit package for which the post was deemed redundant) 
This is detailed in Note 3.3 of the statutory accounts. 
 
The CCG has not made any special (non-contractual) payments in 2019/20 or up to the time of 
this report.   
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Parliamentary Accountability and Audit Report 
 
NHS Newcastle Gateshead CCG is not required to produce a Parliamentary Accountability and 
Audit Report. Disclosures on remote contingent liabilities, losses and special payments, gifts, 
and fees and charges are included where relevant as notes in the Financial Statements of this 
report. An audit certificate and report is also included in this Annual Report at page 103. 

	
 

 

 

 

Mark Adams 
Accountable Officer 
01 June 2020 
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Independent auditor’s report to the Governing Body of NHS Newcastle 
Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group 
 
Opinion on the financial statements 
We have audited the financial statements of NHS Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group 
(‘the CCG’) for the year ended 31 March 2020, which comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Net 
Expenditure, the Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Changes in Taxpayers’ Equity, the 
Statement of Cash Flows, and notes to the financial statements, including the summary of significant 
accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is 
applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European 
Union, and as interpreted and adapted by HM Treasury’s Financial Reporting Manual 2019/20 as 
contained in the Department of Health and Social Care Group Accounting Manual 2019/20, and the 
Accounts Direction issued by the NHS Commissioning Board with the approval of the Secretary of State 
as relevant to Clinical Commissioning Groups in England.  
 
In our opinion, the financial statements: 

• give a true and fair view of the financial position of the CCG as at 31 March 2020 and of its net 
expenditure for the year then ended; 

• have been properly prepared in accordance with the Department of Health and Social Care 
Group Accounting Manual 2019/20; and 

• have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Health and Social Care 
Act 2012.  

Basis for opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and 
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
responsibilities section of our report. We are independent of the CCG in accordance with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s 
Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. 
 
Conclusions relating to going concern 
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require 
us to report to you where: 

• the Accountable Officer’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the 
financial statements is not appropriate; or 

• the Accountable Officer has not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material 
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the CCG’s ability to continue to adopt the 
going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the 
financial statements are authorised for issue. 

Other information 
The Accountable Officer is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report 
thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the 
extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion 
thereon. 
 
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are 
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required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material 
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there 
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. 
 
We have nothing to report in this regard. 
 
Opinion on regularity 
In our opinion, in all material respects the expenditure and income reflected in the financial statements 
have been applied to the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the 
authorities which govern them. 
 
Responsibilities of the Accountable Officer for the financial statements 
As explained more fully in the Statement of Accountable Officer’s Responsibilities, the Accountable 
Officer is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they 
give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Accountable Officer determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. The Accountable Officer is also responsible for ensuring the regularity of 
expenditure and income.  
The Accountable Officer is required to comply with the Department of Health and Social Care Group 
Accounting Manual and prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis, unless the CCG is 
informed of the intention for dissolution without transfer of services or function to another entity. The 
Accountable Officer is responsible for assessing each year whether or not it is appropriate for the CCG 
to prepare its accounts on the going concern basis and disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 
going concern.  
 
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these financial statements. 
 
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the 
Financial Reporting Council’s website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms 
part of our auditor’s report. 
  
We are also responsible for giving an opinion on the regularity of expenditure and income in 
accordance with the Code of Audit Practice prepared by the Comptroller and Auditor General as 
required by the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. 
 
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Code of Audit Practice 
In our opinion: 

• the parts of the Remuneration and Staff Report subject to audit have been properly prepared in 
accordance with the Accounts Direction made under the National Health Service Act 2006; and 

• the other information published together with the audited financial statements in the Annual 
Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with 
the financial statements. 

Matters on which we are required to report by exception 
We are required to report to you if: 

• in our opinion the Annual Governance Statement does not comply with the guidance issued by 
NHS England; or 
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• we refer a matter to the Secretary of State under section 30 of the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014 because we have reason to believe that the CCG, or an officer of the 
CCG, is about to make, or has made, a decision which involves or would involve the body 
incurring unlawful expenditure, or is about to take, or has begun to take a course of action 
which, if followed to its conclusion, would be unlawful and likely to cause a loss or deficiency; or 

• we issue a report in the public interest under section 24 and schedule 7(1) of the Local Audit 
and Accountability Act 2014; or 

• we make a written recommendation to the CCG under section 24 and schedule 7(2) of the Local 
Audit and Accountability Act 2014. 

We have nothing to report in these respects. 
 
The CCG’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of 
resources 
 
Matter on which we are required to report by exception 
We are required to report to you if, in our opinion, we are not satisfied that the CCG has made proper 
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year 
ended 31 March 2020. 
 
We have nothing to report in this respect.  
 
Responsibilities of the Accountable Officer  
As explained in the Statement of Accountable Officer’s responsibilities, the Accountable Officer is 
responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness 
in the use of the CCG’s resources. 
 
Auditor’s responsibilities for the review of arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in the use of resources 
We are required under section 21(1)(c) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 to satisfy 
ourselves that the CCG has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of resources, and to report where we have not been able to satisfy ourselves 
that it has done so.  We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of 
the CCG’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources are 
operating effectively. 
We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to the 
guidance on the specified criterion issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in April 2020, as to 
whether the CCG had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed decisions and deployed 
resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people. The 
Comptroller and Auditor General determined this criterion as that necessary for us to consider under 
the Code of Audit Practice in satisfying ourselves whether the CCG put in place proper arrangements 
for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ended 31 March 
2020. 
We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Based on our risk assessment, we 
undertook such work as we considered necessary. 
 
Use of the audit report 
This report is made solely to the members of the Governing Body of NHS Newcastle Gateshead CCG, 
as a body, in accordance with part 5 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014. Our audit work has 
been undertaken so that we might state to the Members of the Governing Body of the CCG those 
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest 
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Governing 
Body of the CCG, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed. 
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Delay in certification of completion of the audit 
We cannot formally conclude the audit and issue an audit certificate until we have completed the work 
necessary to issue: 

• our independent auditor’s statement to the Governing Body on the CCG Accounts Consolidation 
Template; and 

• the Non-sampled Group Return and supporting documents to the National Audit Office in 
respect of their audit of NHS England, the Department of Health and Social Care (DHSC) Group 
Accounts, and the Whole of Government Accounts (WGA). 
 

We are satisfied that these matters would not have a material effect on the financial statements or on 
our conclusion on the CCG’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its 
use of resources. 
 
 

 
 
Cameron Waddell 
Key Audit Partner 
For and on behalf of Mazars LLP 
 
Salvus House 
Aykley Heads 
Durham 
DH1 5TS 
 
02 June 2020 
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Accountable Officer 
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Statement of Comprehensive Net Expenditure for the year ended

31 March 2020

2019-20 2018-19

Note £'000 £'000

Income from sale of goods and services 2 - -

Other operating income 2 (1,257) (793)

Total operating income (1,257) (793)

Staff costs 3 6,912 6,718

Purchase of goods and services 4 860,795 816,213

Other Operating Expenditure 4 306 254

Total operating expenditure 868,013 823,185

Total Net Expenditure for the Financial Year 866,756 822,392
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Statement of Financial Position as at

31 March 2020

31/03/2020 31/03/2019

Note £'000 £'000

Current assets:

Trade and other receivables 7 5,766 5,504

Cash and cash equivalents 8 82 144

Total current assets 5,849 5,648

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 9 (67,825) (56,270)

Total current liabilities (67,825) (56,270)

Assets less Liabilities (61,976) (50,622)

Financed by Taxpayers’ Equity

General fund (61,976) (50,622)

Total Taxpayers' Equity: (61,976) (50,622)

The notes on pages 5 to 17 form part of this statement

The financial statements on pages 1 to 4 were approved by the Governing Body on 19th May 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

2

Chief Officer

Mark Adams

01 June 2020
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Statement of Changes In Taxpayers Equity for the year ended

31 March 2020

General fund

£'000

Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2019-20

Balance at 01 April 2019 (50,622)

Changes in NHS Clinical Commissioning Group taxpayers’ equity for 2019-20

Net operating expenditure for the financial year (866,756)

Net Recognised NHS Clinical Commissioning Group Expenditure for the Financial  Year (866,756)

Net funding 855,402

Balance at 31 March 2020 (61,976)

General fund

£'000

Changes in taxpayers’ equity for 2018-19

Balance at 01 April 2018 (43,671)

Changes in NHS Clinical Commissioning Group taxpayers’ equity for 2018-19

Net operating expenditure for the financial year (822,392)

Net funding 815,441

Balance at 31 March 2019 (50,622)

The notes on pages 5 to 17 form part of this statement
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Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended

31 March 2020

2019-20 2018-19

Note £'000 £'000

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net operating expenditure for the financial year (866,756) (822,392)

(Increase)/decrease in trade & other receivables 7 (263) 1,163

Increase/(decrease) in trade & other payables 9 11,555 5,532

Net Cash (Outflow) from Operating Activities (855,464) (815,697)

Net Cash (Outflow) before Financing (855,464) (815,697)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Grant in Aid Funding Received 855,402 815,441

Net Cash Inflow from Financing Activities 855,402 815,441

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents 8 (62) (256)

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Financial Year 144 400

Cash & Cash Equivalents at the End of the Financial Year 82 144

The notes on pages 5 to 17 form part of this statement
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Notes to the financial statements

1 Accounting Policies

NHS England has directed that the financial statements of Clinical Commissioning Groups shall meet the accounting requirements of the Group 

Accounting Manual issued by the Department of Health and Social Care. Consequently, the following financial statements have been prepared in 

accordance with the Group Accounting Manual 2019-20 issued by the Department of Health and Social Care. The accounting policies contained in 

the Group Accounting Manual follow International Financial Reporting Standards to the extent that they are meaningful and appropriate to Clinical 

Commissioning Groups, as determined by HM Treasury, which is advised by the Financial Reporting Advisory Board.  Where the Group Accounting 

Manual permits a choice of accounting policy, the accounting policy which is judged to be most appropriate to the particular circumstances of the 

Clinical Commissioning Group for the purpose of giving a true and fair view has been selected. The particular policies adopted by the Clinical 

Commissioning Group are described below. They have been applied consistently in dealing with items considered material in relation to the 

accounts.

1.1 Going Concern

These accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Public sector bodies are assumed to be going concerns where the continuation of the provision of a service in the future is anticipated, as evidenced 

by inclusion of financial provision for that service in published documents.

Where a Clinical Commissioning Group ceases to exist, it considers whether or not its services will continue to be provided (using the same assets, 

by another public sector entity) in determining whether to use the concept of going concern for the final set of financial statements. If services will 

continue to be provided the financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis.

1.2 Accounting Convention

These accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified to account for the revaluation of property, plant and equipment, 

intangible assets, inventories and certain financial assets and financial liabilities.

1.3 Joint arrangements

Arrangements over which the Clinical Commissioning Group has joint control with one or more other entities are classified as joint arrangements. 

Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement. A joint arrangement is either a joint operation or a joint venture.

A joint operation exists where the parties that have joint control have rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities relating to the arrangement. 

Where the Clinical Commissioning Group is a joint operator it recognises its share of, assets, liabilities, income and expenses in its own accounts.

Details of the Joint arrangements entered in to by the Clinical Commissioning Group can be found in Note 12.

1.4 Revenue

The main source of funding for the Clinical Commissioning Group is from NHS England. This is drawn down and credited to the general fund. 

Funding is recognised in the period in which it is received.

Revenue in respect of services provided is recognised when (or as) performance obligations are satisfied by transferring promised services to the 

customer, and is measured at the amount of the transaction price allocated to that performance obligation.

Where income is received for a specific performance obligation that is to be satisfied in the following year, that income is deferred.

1.5 Employee Benefits

1.5.1 Short-term Employee Benefits

Salaries, wages and employment-related payments, including payments arising from the apprenticeship levy, are recognised in the period in which 

the service is received from employees, including bonuses earned but not yet taken.

The cost of leave earned but not taken by employees at the end of the period is recognised in the financial statements to the extent that employees 

are permitted to carry forward leave into the following period.

1.5.2 Retirement Benefit Costs

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pensions Schemes. These schemes are unfunded, defined benefit schemes 

that cover NHS employers, General Practices and other bodies allowed under the direction of the Secretary of State in England and Wales. The 

schemes are not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies to identify their share of the underlying liabilities. Therefore, the schemes 

are accounted for as though they were defined contribution schemes: the cost to the Clinical Commissioning Group of participating in a scheme is 

taken as equal to the contributions payable to the scheme for the accounting period.

For early retirements other than those due to ill health the additional pension liabilities are not funded by the scheme. The full amount of the liability 

for the additional costs is charged to expenditure at the time the Clinical Commissioning Group commits itself to the retirement, regardless of the 

method of payment.

The schemes are subject to a full actuarial valuation every four years and an accounting valuation every year.

1.6 Other Expenses

Other operating expenses are recognised when, and to the extent that, the goods or services have been received. They are measured at the fair 

value of the consideration payable.

1.7 Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the lessee. All other leases are 

classified as operating leases.

1.7.1 The Clinical Commissioning Group as Lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease incentives are recognised initially as a 

liability and subsequently as a reduction of rentals on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Contingent rentals are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the financial statements

1.8 Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial institution repayable without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are 

investments that mature in 3 months or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant 

risk of change in value.

In the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and that form an integral 

part of the Clinical Commissioning Group’s cash management.

1.9 Clinical Negligence Costs

NHS Resolution (the trading name of the NHS Litigation Authority NHSLA) operates a risk pooling scheme under which the Clinical Commissioning 

Group pays an annual contribution to NHS Resolution, which in return settles all clinical negligence claims. The contribution is charged to 

expenditure. Although the NHS Litigation Authority is administratively responsible for all clinical negligence cases, the legal liability remains with the 

Clinical Commissioning Group.

1.10 Non-clinical Risk Pooling

The Clinical Commissioning Group participates in the Property Expenses Scheme and the Liabilities to Third Parties Scheme. Both are risk pooling 

schemes under which the Clinical Commissioning Group pays an annual contribution to the NHS Resolution and, in return, receives assistance with 

the costs of claims arising. The annual membership contributions, and any excesses payable in respect of particular claims are charged to operating 

expenses as and when they become due.

1.11 Financial Assets

Financial assets are recognised when the Clinical Commissioning Group becomes party to the financial instrument contract or, in the case of trade 

receivables, when the goods or services have been delivered. Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights have expired or the 

asset has been transferred.

Financial assets are classified into the following categories:

·                Financial assets at amortised cost;

·                Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income and ;

·                Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss.

The classification is determined by the cash flow and business model characteristics of the financial assets, as set out in IFRS 9, and is determined 

at the time of initial recognition.

1.11.1 Financial Assets at Amortised cost

Financial assets measured at amortised cost are those held within a business model whose objective is achieved by collecting contractual cash flows  

and where the cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest. This includes most trade receivables and other simple debt instruments. After 

initial recognition these financial assets are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less any impairment. The effective 

interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of the 

financial asset.

1.12 Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Clinical Commissioning Group becomes party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument or, 

in the case of trade payables, when the goods or services have been received. Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the liability has been 

discharged, that is, the liability has been paid or has expired.

1.13 Value Added Tax

Most of the activities of the Clinical Commissioning Group are outside the scope of VAT and, in general, output tax does not apply and input tax on 

purchases is not recoverable. Irrecoverable VAT is charged to the relevant expenditure category or included in the capitalised purchase cost of fixed 

assets. Where output tax is charged or input VAT is recoverable, the amounts are stated net of VAT.

1.14 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Clinical Commissioning Group's accounting policies, management is required to make various judgements, estimates and 

assumptions. These are regularly reviewed.

1.14.1 Critical accounting judgements in applying accounting policies

The only critical judgements are those involving estimations (see below) that management has made in the process of applying the Clinical 

Commissioning Group's accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements. 

1.14.2 Sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are assumptions about the future and other major sources of estimation uncertainty that have a significant risk of resulting in a material 

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. The majority of transactions reported are based upon actual 

transactions, In some cases estimates are required when actual charges have not been received. When this occurs the Clinical Commissioning 

Group calculates estimates taking account of the latest information available and actual year to date transactions. The main estimate in 2019/20 

related to prescribing expenditure which is two months in arrears and is based on BSA profiling. The estimate accrual within the accounts is for the 

month of March only this year and is £6.965m (the prior year accrual was for February and March and was £12.7m). 

1.15 Accounting Standards That Have Been Issued But Have Not Yet Been Adopted

● IFRS 16 Leases – HM Treasury revised the implementation date for IFRS 16 in the UK public sector to 1 April 2021 on 19 March 2020. Due to the 

need to reassess lease calculations, together with uncertainty on expected leasing activity from April 2021 and beyond, a quantification of the 

expected impact of applying the standard in 2021/22 is currently impracticable. IFRS 16 Leases will replace IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining 

whether an arrangement contains a lease and other interpretations and will remove the distinction between operating and finance leases and as a 

result bring leases ‘on balance sheet’ for the first time. However, the CCG does not expect this standard to have a material impact on non-current 

assets, liabilities and depreciation.
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2 Other Operating Revenue

2019-20 2019-20 2019-20 2018-19

Admin Programme Total Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Other operating income

Other non contract revenue 36 1,221 1,257 793

Total Other operating income 36 1,221 1,257 793

Total Operating Income 36 1,221 1,257 793

Admin income is income received that is not directly attributable to the provision of healthcare or healthcare services.

All income is from the rendering of services and is deemed by the Clinical Commissioning Group to be non-contract revenue.

Income in this note does not include cash received from NHS England, which is drawn down directly into the bank account of NHS 

Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group and credited to the General Fund. Included in the note above is £308k revenue 

from NHS England which does not form part of the drawdown.
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3. Employee benefits and staff numbers

3.1. Employee benefits 2019-20 2019-20 2019-20

Permanent 

Employees

Other Total

£'000 £'000 £'000

Employee Benefits

Salaries and wages 5,031 473 5,504

Social security costs 515 2 517

Employer Contributions to NHS Pension scheme 860 1 861

Other pension costs 6 0 6

Apprenticeship Levy 12 0 12

Termination benefits 12 0 12

Gross employee benefits expenditure 6,436 476 6,912

2018-19 2018-19 2018-19

Permanent 

Employees

Other Total

£'000 £'000 £'000

Employee Benefits

Salaries and wages 4,870 594 5,464

Social security costs 504 0 504

Employer Contributions to NHS Pension scheme 583 0 583

Other pension costs 3 0 3

Apprenticeship Levy 10 0 10

Termination benefits 154 0 154

Gross employee benefits expenditure 6,124 594 6,718
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3.2 Average number of people employed
2019-20 2019-20 2019-20 2018-19 2018-19 2018-19

Permanently 

employed Other Total

Permanently 

employed Other Total

Number Number Number Number Number Number

Total 100.91 8.08 108.99 96.46 8.36 104.82

3.3 Exit packages agreed in the financial year

Number £ Number £ Number £
Less than £10,000 6 12,235 - - 6 12,235
Total 6 12,235 - - 6 12,235

Number £ Number £ Number £
£150,001 to £200,000 - - 1 154,360 1 154,360
Total - - 1 154,360 1 154,360

Analysis of Other Agreed Departures

Number £ Number £

Voluntary redundancies including early retirement contractual costs - - 1 142,486

Contractual payments in lieu of notice - - - 11,874

Total - - 1 154,360

In 2018/19, there was only one departure, consisting of two different pay elements.

These tables report the number and value of exit packages agreed in the financial year. The expense associated with these departures may have been recognised in part or in full in a previous 

period.

Redundancy and other departure costs have been paid in accordance with the provisions of the NHS agenda for change pay framework..

2018-19

Other agreed departuresOther agreed departures

2019-20

Compulsory redundancies

2018-19

Compulsory redundancies

Exit costs are accounted for in accordance with relevant accounting standards and at the latest in full in the year of departure.

The Remuneration Report includes the disclosure of exit payments payable to individuals named in that Report.

2019-20

Other agreed departures Total

2018-19 2018-19

Other agreed departures

2019-20

2019-20

Total
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3.4 Pension costs

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the two NHS Pension Schemes. Details of the benefits payable and rules of 

the Schemes can be found on the NHS Pensions website at www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions.

These schemes are unfunded, defined benefit schemes that cover NHS employers, General Practices and other bodies allowed under the 

direction of the Secretary of State in England and Wales. The schemes are not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies 

to identify their share of the underlying scheme liabilities.

Therefore, the schemes are accounted for as though they were defined contribution schemes: the cost to the Clinical Commissioning 

Group of participating in a scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable to the scheme for the accounting period.

The schemes are subject to a full actuarial valuation every four years and an accounting valuation every year.

The employer contribution rate for NHS Pensions increased from 14.38% to 20.6% from 1st April 2019. For 2019/20, Clinical 

Commissioning Groups continued to pay over contributions at the former rate with the additional amount being paid by NHS England on 

their behalf. The full cost and related funding has been recognised in these accounts.

3.4.1 Accounting valuation

A valuation of the scheme liability is carried out annually by the scheme actuary (currently the Government Actuary’s Department) as at 

the end of the reporting period. This utilises an actuarial assessment for the previous accounting period in conjunction with updated 

membership and financial data for the current reporting period, and is accepted as providing suitably robust figures for financial reporting 

purposes. The valuation of the scheme liability as at 31 March 2020, is based on valuation data as 31 March 2019 updated to 31 March 

2020 with summary global member and accounting data. In undertaking this actuarial assessment, the methodology prescribed in IAS 19, 

relevant FReM interpretations, and the discount rate prescribed by HM Treasury have also been used.

The latest assessment of the liabilities of the scheme is contained in the report of the scheme actuary, which forms part of the annual NHS 

Pension Scheme Accounts. These accounts can be viewed on the NHS Pensions website and are published annually. Copies can also be 

obtained from The Stationery Office.

3.4.2 Full actuarial (funding) valuation

The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of liability in respect of the benefits due under the schemes (taking into account recent 

demographic experience), and to recommend contribution rates payable by employees and employers. 

The last published actuarial valuation undertaken for the NHS Pension Scheme was completed for the year ending 31 March 2016. The 

results of this valuation set the employer contribution rate payable from April 2019. The results of this valuation set the employer 

contribution rate payable from April 2019 to 20.6%, and the Scheme Regulations were amended accordingly. 

The 2016 funding valuation was also expected to test the cost of the Scheme relative to the employer cost cap set following the 2012 

valuation. Following a judgment from the Court of Appeal in December 2018 Government announced a pause to that part of the valuation 

process pending conclusion of the continuing legal process. 

For 2019-20, employers’ contributions of £861k were payable to the NHS Pensions Scheme (2018-19: £583k) at the rate of 20.6% of 

pensionable pay. These costs are included in the NHS pension line of note 3. 
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4. Operating expenses

2019-20 2019-20 2019-20 2018-19

Admin Programme Total Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Purchase of goods and services

Services from other CCGs and NHS England 3,150 1,118 4,268 5,209

Services from foundation trusts 5 557,489 557,494 519,605

Services from other NHS trusts - 1,226 1,226 1,247

Services from Other WGA bodies - 556 556 120

Purchase of healthcare from non-NHS bodies - 124,712 124,712 127,449

Purchase of social care - 16,827 16,827 13,956

General Dental services and personal dental services - - - -

Prescribing costs - 80,294 80,294 76,994

Pharmaceutical services - 302 302 297

General Ophthalmic services - - - -

GPMS/APMS and PCTMS - 71,427 71,427 68,460

Supplies and services – general 115 1 116 109

Establishment 202 197 399 282

Transport 12 3 15 13

Premises 480 2,209 2,689 2,058

Audit fees 52 - 52 52

Other professional fees 129 2 131 113

Legal fees 128 - 128 121

Education, training and conferences 151 8 160 128

Total Purchase of goods and services 4,424 856,371 860,795 816,213

Other Operating Expenditure

Chair and Non Executive Members 256 25 281 234

Clinical negligence 5 - 5 6

Expected credit loss on receivables 20 - 20 14

Total Other Operating Expenditure 281 25 306 254

Total operating expenditure 4,705 856,396 861,101 816,467

Admin expenditure is expenditure incurred that is not a direct payment for the provision of healthcare or healthcare services.

Included within Other Professional Fees is £67k ( 2018-19 £51k ) paid for Internal Audit Services to Northumberland, Tyne and Wear NHS Foundation Trust.

External audit fees are inclusive of VAT.

18/19 - £9.5k + VAT

19/20 - nil

Included within Premises is £487k ( 2018-19 £2,019k ) for Rentals under Operating Leases with NHS Property Services, which is reported in Note 6. 

Included within legal fees are costs relating to 18/19 in respect of Mental Health Investment Standard assurance that NHSE requires Clinical Commissioning Groups to 

obtain from an independent reporting accountant, to demonstrate their investment in mental health expenditure rises at a faster rate than their overall published 

programme. 
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5 Better Payment Practice Code

Measure of compliance 2019-20 2019-20 2018-19 2018-19

Number £'000 Number £'000

Non-NHS Payables

Total Non-NHS Trade invoices paid in the Year 17,230 209,884 18,044 213,144

Total Non-NHS Trade Invoices paid within target 16,999 208,693 17,605 211,021

Percentage of Non-NHS Trade invoices paid within target 98.66% 99.43% 97.57% 99.00%

NHS Payables

Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid in the Year 3,069 565,330 3,397 523,454

Total NHS Trade Invoices Paid within target 3,033 563,670 3,336 522,412

Percentage of NHS Trade Invoices paid within target 98.83% 99.71% 98.20% 99.80%

6. Operating Leases

6.1 As lessee

6.1.1 Payments recognised as an Expense 2019-20

Buildings Other Total Buildings Other Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Payments recognised as an expense

Minimum lease payments 497 3 500 2,015 8 2,023

Total 497 3 500 2,015 8 2,023

6.1.2 Future minimum lease payments 2019-20

Buildings Other Total Buildings Other Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Payable:

No later than one year 3 2 5 - 9 9

Between one and five years - - - - 4 4

After five years - - - - - -

Total 3 2 5 - 13 13

The Better Payment Practice Code requires NHS Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group to pay 95% of invoices by the 

due date or within 30 days of receipt of a valid invoice, whichever is later.

Whilst our arrangements with Community Health Partnership's Limited and NHS Property Services Limited fall within the definition of operating leases, rental charge for future years has not yet been 

agreed. Consequently this note does not include future minimum lease payments for the arrangements.

In 2018-19 Operating Leases included charges for voids & subsidies. In 2019-20 NHS England and NHS Improvement guidance has identified that as these costs do not relate to formal lease 

arrangements they should be excluded from note 6.1.1. The Clinical Commissioning Group has assessed the arrangements itself and is satisfied they don’t meet the definition of lease payments. The 

costs can be found within Premises in Note 4. 
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7  Trade and other receivables Current Current

31/03/2020 31/03/2019

£'000 £'000

NHS receivables: Revenue 1,231 768

NHS prepayments 1,988 1,903

NHS accrued income 254 366

Non-NHS and Other WGA receivables: Revenue 1,690 1,953

Non-NHS and Other WGA prepayments 221 263

Non-NHS and Other WGA accrued income 403 230

Expected credit loss allowance-receivables (51) (31)

VAT 25 27

Other receivables and accruals 5 25

Total Trade & other receivables 5,766 5,503

Total current 5,766 5,503

7.1 Receivables past their due date but not impaired

31/03/2020 31/03/2020 31/03/2019 31/03/2019

DHSC Group 

Bodies

Non DHSC 

Group Bodies

DHSC Group 

Bodies

Non DHSC 

Group Bodies
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

By up to three months 21 44 5 158

By three to six months 15 78 - 0

By more than six months 5 359 263 181

Total 41 481 268 339

7.2 Loss allowance on asset classes

Trade and other 

receivables - Non 

DHSC Group 

Bodies

Total

Trade and other 

receivables - Non 

DHSC Group 

Bodies

Total

31/03/2020 31/03/2020 31/03/2019 31/03/2019

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Balance at 01 April 2019 (31) (31) (17) (17)

Lifetime expected credit losses on trade and other receivables-Stage 2 (20) (20) (31) (31)

Other changes - - 17 17

Allowance for credit losses at 31 March 2020 (51) (51) (31) (31)

8 Cash and cash equivalents

31/03/2020 31/03/2019

£'000 £'000

Balance at 01 April 2019 144 400

Net change in year (62) (256)

Balance at 31 March 2020 82 144

Made up of:

Cash with the Government Banking Service 82 144

Cash and cash equivalents as in statement of financial position 82 144

Balance at 31 March 2020 82 144

The majority of trade is with NHS England. As NHS England is funded by Government to provide funding to Clinical Commissioning Groups to commission services, no credit scoring of 

them is considered necessary.
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Current Current

31/03/2020 31/03/2019

£'000 £'000

NHS payables: Revenue 4,310 10,664

NHS accruals 9,131 3,494

Non-NHS and Other WGA payables: Revenue 8,205 7,001

Non-NHS and Other WGA accruals 45,333 34,341

Social security costs 90 81

Tax 97 86

Other payables and accruals 659 603

Total Trade & Other Payables 67,825 56,270

Total current 67,825 56,270

10 Financial instruments

10.1 Financial risk management

10.2 Financial assets

Financial Assets 

measured at 

amortised cost

Financial Assets 

measured at amortised 

cost

31/03/2020 31/03/2019

£'000 £'000

Trade and other receivables with NHSE bodies 1,282 903

Trade and other receivables with other DHSC group bodies 714 462

Trade and other receivables with external bodies 1,588 1,953

Other financial assets - 25

Cash and cash equivalents 82 144

Total at 31 March 2020 3,666 3,487

10.3 Financial liabilities
Financial Liabilities 

measured at 

amortised cost

Financial Liabilities 

measured at amortised 

cost

31/03/2020 31/03/2019

£'000 £'000

Trade and other payables with NHSE bodies 425 327

Trade and other payables with other DHSC group bodies 28,224 28,208

Trade and other payables with external bodies 38,989 26,964

Other financial liabilities - 603

Total at 31 March 2020 67,638 56,102

Because NHS Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group is financed through parliamentary funding, it is not exposed to the degree 

of financial risk faced by business entities. Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group has limited powers to borrow or invest surplus 

funds and financial assets and liabilities are generated by day-to-day operational activities rather than being held to change the risks facing 

Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group in undertaking its activities.

Financial reporting standard IFRS 7 requires disclosure of the role that financial instruments have had during the period in creating or changing 

the risks a body faces in undertaking its activities.

Treasury management operations are carried out by the finance department, within parameters defined formally within the NHS Clinical 

Commissioning Group standing financial instructions and policies agreed by the Governing Body. Treasury activity is subject to review by the 

NHS Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group and internal auditors.

9 Trade and other payables

Other payables include £636k outstanding pension contributions at 31 March 2020 (£576k at March 2019).
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11 Operating segments

12 Joint arrangements - interests in joint operations

12.1 Interests in joint operations

Amounts recognised 

in Entities books 

ONLY

Amounts recognised 

in Entities books 

ONLY
2019-20 2018-19

Name of arrangement
Parties to the 

arrangement

Description of 

principal 

activities

Expenditure Expenditure

£'000 £'000

Gateshead Equipment Service

NHS Newcastle 

Gateshead CCG, 

Gateshead Local 

Authority

Purchase of home 

loans equipment 

for Gateshead 

residents

1,628 1,606

Mental Capacity Act 

Requirements

NHS Newcastle 

Gateshead CCG, 

Gateshead Local 

Authority

MCA requirements 32 32

Better Care Fund Newcastle

NHS Newcastle 

Gateshead CCG, 

Newcastle Local 

Authority

Better Care Fund 

schemes
22,937 21,838

Better Care Fund Gateshead

NHS Newcastle 

Gateshead CCG, 

Gateshead Local 

Authority

Better Care Fund 

schemes
16,236 15,567

NHS Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group only has one operating segment: commissioning of healthcare services. 

NHS Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group has a pooled budget arrangement with Newcastle City Council for the Better 

Care Fund, which the Council hosts. The Clinical Commissioning Group accounts for its share of the income and expenditure of the pool 

as determined by the pooled budget agreement. The annual contribution to the pooled budget for 2019/20 was £22,937k.

NHS Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group has a pooled budget arrangement with Gateshead Council for the Better Care 

Fund, which the Council hosts. The Clinical Commissioning Group accounts for its share of the income and expenditure of the pool as 

determined by the pooled budget agreement. The annual contribution to the pooled budget for 2019/20 was £16,236k.

NHS Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group hosted a pooled budget arrangement with Gateshead Council for the 

provision of an Integrated Community Equipment Service. NHS Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group also has a pooled 

budget arrangement with Gateshead Council where the Local Authority hosts the pooled budget for the Mental Capacity Act. NHS 

Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group accounts for its share of the income and expenditure of the pools as determined by 

the pooled budget agreements for both of these arrangements. The annual contribution to the pooled budgets in the financial year was 

£1,660k.

The NHS Clinical Commissioning Group shares of the income and expenditure handled by the pooled budget in the financial year were 

as detailed below :
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13 Related party transactions

Payments 

to Related 

Party

Receipts 

from 

Related 

Party

Amounts 

owed to 

Related 

Party

Amounts 

due from 

Related 

Party

Payments 

to Related 

Party

Receipts 

from 

Related 

Party

Amounts 

owed to 

Related 

Party

Amounts 

due from 

Related 

Party

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Governing Body Member Related Party / Practice Governing Body Member

Cruddas Park Surgery Dr. Guy Pilkington 0 0 0 0 1,446 0 119 0

Teams Medical Practice Dr. Mark Dornan 1,190 0 -45 0 784 0 -5 -2

Academic Health Science Network Dr. Mark Dornan 19 -54 0 -3 19 0 0 -4

NHS North Tyneside CCG Mark Adams 4 -78 5 -43 4 -77 0 -270

NHS Northumberland CCG Mark Adams 53 -90 0 -32 0 0 0 0

Community Based Care Health Ltd Dr. Peter Ward / Margaret Stewart4,561 0 44 0 4,902 0 10 0

NHS England Michael Burke 29 -555 36 -993 14 -2,172 2 -3

Tyneside Mind Oliver Wood 296 0 2 0 288 0 2 0

Central Gateshead Medical Group Dr. Peter Ward 1,399 0 89 0 1,442 0 74 0

Oxford Terrace and Rawling Road Medical Group Sheinaz Stansfield 2,232 0 85 0 2,243 0 113 0

Streetwise Young People's Project Mandy Coppin 0 0 0 78 0 0 0

Health Education England Margaret Stewart 40 -9 0 -31 0 -74 0 0

Thornfield Medical Group Tracey Stuchlik 2,447 0 545 0 2,561 0 157 -7

Bridges Medical Practice Dominic Slowie 780 0 18 0 710 0 50 0

Park Medical Group Steve Summers 1,441 0 47 0 1,393 0 74 0

Wrekenton Medical Group ( incorporating The Croft and High Street Practices) Elizabeth Moylett 1,570 0 2 0 1,666 0 0 0

Throckley Primary Care Dr David Jones 900 0 24 0 869 0 20 0

Gateshead Council Lynn Wilson 26,195 -1,593 10,300 -1,199 0 0 0 0

All transactions are with the Governing Body Member Related Party / Practice, not the Governing Body Member

Dr.Guy Pilkington was not a member of the Governing Body in 2019/20 so the transactions for Cruddas Park Surgery are included in the table below.

Elizabeth Moylett and Dr David Jones joined the Governing Body in 2019/20 so the current and prior year transactions for Wrekenton Medical Group and Throckley Primary Care are now included in table 1. 

Other Related Practices (not listed in table above)

Payments 

to Related 

Party

Receipts 

from 

Related 

Party

Amounts 

owed to 

Related 

Party

Amounts 

due from 

Related 

Party

Payments 

to Related 

Party

Receipts 

from 

Related 

Party

Amounts 

owed to 

Related 

Party

Amounts 

due from 

Related 

Party

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

108 Rawling Road 192 0 11 0 235 0 12 0

Avenue Medical Practice 301 0 9 0 303 0 11 0

Beacon View Medical Centre 618 0 19 0 637 0 8 0

Benfield Park Medical Group (formerly 37a Heaton Road) 1,142 0 44 0 1,076 0 80 0

Bensham Family Practice 852 0 15 0 530 0 20 0

Betts Avenue Medical Centre 1,491 0 50 0 1,413 0 114 0

Bewick Road Surgery 746 0 25 0 710 0 24 0

Biddlestone Health Group 928 0 5 0 1,050 0 12 0

Birtley Medical Group 2,270 0 52 0 2,082 0 100 0

Blaydon GP Practice & Minor Injuries/illness unit 768 0 20 0 392 0 95 0

Broadway Medical Centre 308 0 11 0 327 0 17 0

Brunton Park Health Centre 678 0 19 0 684 0 25 0

Chainbridge Medical Partnership 1,415 0 214 0 1,389 0 104 0

Crawcrook Surgery 948 0 81 0 993 0 22 0

Crowhall Medical Centre 875 0 24 0 865 0 36 0

Cruddas Park Surgery 1,754 0 101 0 1,446 0 119 0

Denton Park Medical Group 1,027 0 39 0 1,097 0 56 0

Denton Turret Medical Centre 1,053 0 31 0 1,088 0 45 0

Dilston Medical Centre 781 0 26 0 828 0 35 0

Falcon Medical Group 0 0 25 0 0 0 8 0

Fell Cottage Surgery 1,213 0 10 0 1,154 -22 50 0

Fell Tower Medical Centre 991 0 4 0 1,023 0 6 0

Fenham Hall Medical Group 1,007 0 34 0 1,017 0 46 0

Glenpark Medical Centre 1,282 0 25 0 1,205 0 41 0

Gosforth Memorial Medical Centre 1,085 0 58 0 1,076 0 53 0

Grainger Medical Group incorporating Scotswood GP Practice 2,697 0 985 0 1,297 0 276 0

Grange Road 514 0 5 0 473 0 45 0

Heaton Road Surgery 818 0 27 0 861 0 48 0

Holly Medical Group 4 0 29 0 866 0 24 0

Hollyhurst 772 0 23 0 627 0 27 0

Holmside Medical Group 1,396 0 -40 0 1,286 0 59 0

Longrigg Medical Centre 1,590 0 38 0 1,302 0 59 0

Metro Interchange Surgery 609 0 17 0 510 0 21 0

Millennium Family Practice 522 0 27 0 575 0 -8 0

Newburn Surgery 682 0 29 0 691 0 35 0

Newcastle Medical Centre 1,470 0 22 0 1,364 0 53 0

Oldwell Surgery 621 0 26 0 642 0 33 0

Parkway Medical Group 1,138 0 2 0 1,082 0 49 0

Pelaw Medical Centre 677 0 45 0 707 0 74 0

Ponteland Road Health Centre 0 0 0 0 31 0 20 0

Primary Health Care Centre 411 0 18 0 413 0 0 0

Prospect Medical Group 1,819 0 5 0 1,807 0 13 0

Regent Medical Centre (formerly Elmfield Health Group) 555 0 20 0 587 0 19 0

Roseworth Surgery 667 0 23 0 661 0 43 0

Saville Medical Group 3,854 0 354 0 3,660 0 239 0

Second Street Surgery 410 0 11 0 390 0 30 0

St Anthony's Health Centre 985 0 6 0 853 0 47 0

St. Albans Medical Group 1,242 0 3 0 1,137 0 49 0

Sunniside Surgery 414 0 11 0 417 0 18 0

The Grove Medical Group 1,555 0 48 0 1,494 0 73 0

The Medical Centre (Rowlands Gill) 934 0 -7 0 813 0 50 0

The Surgery 1,378 0 20 0 540 0 25 0

Walker Medical Group 1,838 0 7 0 1,791 0 83 0

West Road medical Centre 1,117 0 38 0 1,116 0 48 0

Westerhope Medical Group 1,596 0 48 0 1,578 0 81 0

Whickham Health Centre 2,135 0 72 0 2,216 0 90 0

• Newcastle upon Tyne Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust

• Gateshead Health NHS Foundation Trust

• Cumbria Northumberland Tyne & Wear NHS Foundation Trust

• South Tyneside & Sunderland NHS Foundation Trust

• North East Ambulance Service NHS Foundation Trust

NHS Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group also has other non material transactions with other NHS related parties that include:

• NHS England, NHS Resolution and NHS Business Services Authority.

Newcastle Gateshead GP member practices have carried out functions for NHS Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group and remuneration has been paid to practices in recognition of their contribution.

The Department of Health and Social Care is regarded as a related party. During the year NHS Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group has had a significant number of material transactions with entities for which the 

Department is regarded as the parent Department. For example:

In addition, NHS Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group has had a number of material transactions with other government departments and other central and local government bodies. The majority of these transactions 

were payments to Local Authorities to the value of £46,253k (18/19 £43,568k) with Newcastle Council and £26,195k (18/19 £31,604k) with Gateshead Council.

Details of related party transactions are as follows:

2019-20 2018-19

2019-20 2018-19
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14 Events after the end of the reporting period

15 Financial performance targets

NHS Clinical Commissioning Group have a number of financial duties under the NHS Act 2006 (as amended).

NHS Clinical Commissioning Group performance against those duties was as follows:

2019-20 2019-20 2019-20 2019-20

£'000 £'000 £'000

Target Performance Variance Duty Achieved

Expenditure not to exceed income 868,702 868,013 689 Yes 

Capital resource use does not exceed the amount specified in Directions - - - Yes 

Revenue resource use does not exceed the amount specified in Directions 867,445 866,756 689 Yes 

Capital resource use on specified matter(s) does not exceed the amount specified in Directions - - - Yes 

Revenue resource use on specified matter(s) does not exceed the amount specified in Directions - - - Yes 

Revenue administration resource use does not exceed the amount specified in Directions 10,837 8,608 2,229 Yes 

2018-19 2018-19 2018-19 2018-19

£'000 £'000 £'000

Target Performance Variance Duty Achieved

Expenditure not to exceed income 823,399 823,185 214 Yes 

Capital resource use does not exceed the amount specified in Directions - - - Yes 

Revenue resource use does not exceed the amount specified in Directions 822,606 822,392 214 Yes 

Capital resource use on specified matter(s) does not exceed the amount specified in Directions - - - Yes 

Revenue resource use on specified matter(s) does not exceed the amount specified in Directions - - - Yes 

Revenue administration resource use does not exceed the amount specified in Directions 10,607 8,631 1,976 Yes 

There are no post balance sheet events which will have a material effect on the financial statements of NHS Newcastle Gateshead Clinical Commissioning Group.
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